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PART 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
(unaudited)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,150 $ 4,172
Accounts receivable, less allowances of $12,529 at 2008 and $16,400 at 2007 52,242 65,030
Inventory 160,858 143,684
Deferred income taxes 7,983 7,925
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 6,455 7,267
Prepaid income taxes 9,010 —
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 237,698 228,078
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 54,351 54,332
GOODWILL 27,432 27,432
OTHER INTANGIBLES, net 34,887 35,383
INVESTMENT IN GRUPO VASCONIA, S.A.B. 24,141 22,950
OTHER ASSETS 3,020 3,240

TOTAL ASSETS $ 381,529 $ 371,415

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings $ 40,600 $ 13,500
Accounts payable 20,761 21,759
Accrued expenses 28,042 31,504
Income taxes payable — 4,520
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 89,403 71,283
DEFERRED RENT & OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 15,732 14,481
DEFERRED INCOME TAX 8,437 8,211
LONG-TERM DEBT 55,200 55,200
CONVERTIBLE NOTES 75,000 75,000

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, $.01 par value, shares authorized: 25,000,000; shares issued and outstanding: 11,966,888 in

2008 and 11,964,388 in 2007 120 120
Paid-in capital 115,269 113,995
Retained earnings 22,571 33,250
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (203) (125)

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 137,757 147,240
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 381,529 $ 371,415

See accompanying independent registered public accounting firm review report and notes to unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements.




LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)
Three Months Ended
June 30,
2008 2007
Net sales $92,399 $ 91,371
Cost of sales 55,288 51,906
Distribution expenses 12,766 11,721
Selling, general and administrative expenses 31,183 29,494
Restructuring expenses 107 —
Loss from operations (6,945) (1,750)
Interest expense (2,053) (1,546)
Loss before income taxes and equity in earnings
of Grupo Vasconia, S.A.B. (8,998) (3,296)
Income tax benefit 5,108 1,270
Equity in earnings of Grupo Vasconia, S.A.B.,
net of taxes 707 —
NET LOSS $ (3,183) $ (2,026)
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER COMMON SHARE $ (0.27) $  (0.15)

See accompanying independent registered public accounting firm review report and notes to unaudited condensed

consolidated financial statements.

3.

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2008 2007
$ 190,593 $ 195,158
114,893 113,003
26,156 25,032
62,286 59,425
2,987 —
(15,729) (2,302)
(4,146) (3,081)
(19,875) (5,383)
9,731 2,074
964 —
$ (9,180) $ (3,309)
$ (0.77) $  (0.25)




LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)
(unaudited)
Six Months Ended
June 30,
2008 2007
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $ (9,180) $ (3,309)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 5,396 4,301
Deferred rent 1,467 200
Deferred income taxes — 1,085
Stock compensation expense 1,264 966
Equity in earnings of Grupo Vasconia, S.A.B., net of taxes (964) —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities (excluding the effect of business
acquisitions):
Accounts receivable, net 12,788 14,556
Inventory (4,857) (9,875)
Prepaid expenses, other current assets and other assets 1,032 (1,131)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities (4,620) (15,178)
Prepaid income taxes (9,010) (3,710)
Income tax payable (4,520) (6,878)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (11,204) (18,973)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment (4,924) (11,803)
Business acquisitions (12,317) (2,119)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (17,241) (13,922)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds of short-term borrowings, net 27,100 35,600
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 8 137
Excess tax benefits from stock compensation — 69
Payment of capital lease obligations (188) (225)
Cash dividends paid (1,497) (1,686)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 25,423 33,895
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,022) 1,000
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 4,172 150
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD $ 1,150 $ 1,150

See accompanying independent registered public accounting firm review report and notes to unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements.
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LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(unaudited)

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization and business

Lifetime Brands, Inc. (the “Company”) designs, markets and distributes a broad range of consumer products used in the home, including food preparation, tabletop and home décor
products and markets its products under a number of brand names and trademarks, which are either owned or licensed. The Company sells its products wholesale to retailers
throughout North America and directly to the consumer through Company-operated factory and outlet stores, mail order catalogs, and the Internet.

Basis of presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for interim
financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring accruals,
considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. These condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. Operating results for the three and six month
periods ended June 30, 2008 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2008.

Seasonality

The Company’s business and working capital needs are highly seasonal, with a majority of sales occurring in the third and fourth quarters. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, net sales for the
third and fourth quarters accounted for 61%, 65% and 71% of total annual net sales, respectively. Operating profits earned in the third and fourth quarters of 2007, 2006 and 2005
accounted for 111%, 99% and 83% of total annual operating profits, respectively. In anticipation of the pre-holiday shipping season, inventory levels increase primarily in the June
through October time period.

Revenue recognition

Wholesale sales are recognized when title of merchandise passes and the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer. Factory and outlet store sales are
recognized at the time of sale. Catalog and Internet sales are recognized upon receipt by the customer. Shipping and handling fees that are billed to customers in sales transactions
are included in net sales and amounted to $970,000 and $824,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and $2.1 million and $1.8 million for the six
months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Net sales exclude taxes that are collected from customers and remitted to the taxing authorities.

Distribution expenses

Distribution expenses consist primarily of warehousing expenses, handling costs of products sold and freight-out expenses. Freight-out expenses amounted to $1.8 million and $1.5
million for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and $3.4 million and $3.9 million, for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(unaudited)

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventory

Inventory consists principally of finished goods sourced from third party suppliers. Inventory also includes finished goods, work in process and raw materials related to the
Company’s manufacture of sterling silver products. Inventory is priced by the lower of cost (first-in, first-out basis) or market method. Consistent with the seasonality of the
Company’s business, inventory generally increases, beginning late in the second quarter of the year, and reaches a peak at the end of the third quarter or early in the fourth quarter,
and declines thereafter. The Company periodically reviews and analyzes inventory based on a number of factors including, but not limited to, future product demand for items and

estimated profitability of merchandise. When appropriate, the Company writes down inventory to net realizable value.

The components of inventory are as follows:

June 30, December 31,
2008 2007
(in thousands)
Finished goods $155,426 $139,042
Work in process 2,453 2,412
Raw materials 2,979 2,230
Total $160,858 $143,684

Derivatives

The Company accounts for derivative instruments in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities, and subsequent amendments (“SFAS 133”). SFAS 133 requires that all derivative instruments be recognized on the balance sheet at fair value as either an asset or a
liability. Accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative depends on whether it qualifies and has been designated as part of a hedging relationship. For derivatives that
qualify and have been designated as hedges for accounting purposes, changes in fair value have no net impact on earnings to the extent the derivative is considered perfectly
effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to the risk being hedged until the hedged item is recognized in earnings. For derivatives that do not
qualify or are not designated as hedging instruments for accounting purposes, changes in fair value are recorded in current period earnings.

Fair value measurements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, which
provides enhanced guidance for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 establishes a common definition of fair value, provides a framework for measuring
fair value under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosure requirements about fair value measurements. In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff
Position (“FSP”) 157-1, Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for
Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13 and FSP 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157. FSP 157-1 amends SFAS No. 157 to remove
certain leasing transactions from its scope. FSP 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157 delays the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for all nonfinancial assets and liabilities
except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on at least an annual basis until January 1, 2009. The Company adopted SFAS No. 157, except
as it applies to nonfinancial assets and liabilities as noted in FSP 157-2, on January 1, 2008. Fair value measurements included in the Company’s condensed consolidated financial
statements relate solely to the Company’s derivatives described in Note G.




LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(unaudited)

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

New accounting pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), Business Combinations (“SFAS 141(R)”). Under SFAS 141(R), an acquiring entity will be required to
recognize all the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a transaction at the acquisition date fair value with limited exceptions. SFAS 141(R) will change the accounting
treatment for certain specific acquisition-related items, including expensing acquisition-related costs as incurred and expensing restructuring costs associated with an acquired
business. SFAS 141(R) applies prospectively, with limited exceptions, to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the first fiscal period beginning on or
after December 15, 2008. Early adoption is not permitted. Generally, the effect of SFAS 141(R) will depend on future acquisitions and, as such, the Company does not currently
expect the adoption of SFAS 141(R) to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133, which enhances
the disclosure requirements for derivatives and hedging activities. SFAS No. 161 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. SFAS No. 161
will only affect the Company’s derivatives disclosures beginning January 1, 2009 and will not have any impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position Accounting Principles Board No. 14-1, Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon
Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement) (“FSP APB 14-17). FSP APB 14-1 requires the issuer of certain convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash, or other
assets, on conversion (including partial cash settlement), to separately account for the liability (debt) and equity (conversion option) components in a manner that reflects the
issuer’s non-convertible debt borrowing rate. The resulting debt discount (equity portion) is amortized over the period the convertible debt is expected to be outstanding as
additional non-cash interest expense. FSP APB 14-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 on a retrospective basis and will be adopted by the Company on
January 1, 2009. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that FSP APB 14-1 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2007 period condensed consolidated statement of cash flows were reclassified to conform to the presentation in 2008. These reclassifications had no effect
on the Company’s previously reported consolidated financial position or results of operations.

-




LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(unaudited)

NOTE B — MIKASA ACQUISITION

On June 6, 2008, the Company acquired the business and certain assets of Mikasa, Inc. (“Mikasa”) from Arc International SA (“ARC”). Mikasa is a leading provider of
dinnerware, crystal stemware, barware, flatware and decorative accessories. Mikasa’s products are distributed through department stores, specialty stores and big box chains, as
well as through its own Internet website. The preliminary purchase price was $20.1 million, consisting of (i) $12.3 million of cash paid at closing, (ii) $2.7 million of certain
liabilities assumed at closing, (iii) $5.0 million of cash to be paid on December 15, 2008, and (iv) acquisition related costs of $100,000. The agreement also requires the Company
to pay ARC an amount by which the sum of 5% of the annual net sales of Mikasa for 2009, 2010 and 2011, exceeds $5.0 million. On a preliminary basis the purchase price has
been allocated to inventory acquired.

NOTE C - INVESTMENT IN GRUPO VASCONIA, S.A.B.

In December 2007, the Company acquired approximately 30% of the capital stock of Grupo Vasconia, S.A.B. (“Vasconia™), (formerly known as, Ekco, S.A.B.), a manufacturer and
distributor of aluminum disks, cookware and related items. Shares of Vasconia’s capital stock are traded on the Bolsa Mexicana de Valores, S.A. de C.V., the Mexico Stock
Exchange, under the symbol BMV: EKCO.

The Company accounts for its investment in Vasconia using the equity method of accounting. Accordingly, the Company has recorded its proportionate share of Vasconia’s net
income (reduced for amortization expense related to the customer relationships acquired), net of taxes of $142,000 and $226,000 for the three and six month periods ended June 30,
2008, respectively, in the accompanying condensed consolidated statement of operations. The Company has allocated the purchase price of Vasconia as follows (in thousands):

Investment $16,036
Goodwill 5,166
Customer relationships (estimated life of 16 years) 1,748
Total $22,950

Summarized income statement information for Vasconia is as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2008
Net sales $28,680 $50,812
Gross profit 8,161 14,242
Income from operations 3,539 5,995
Net income 2,663 4,152




LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(unaudited)
NOTE D - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets

Intangible assets, all of which relate to the Company’s wholesale segment, consist of the following (in thousands):

June 30, 2008 December 31, 2007
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Trade names $ 21,443 $ = $ 21,443 $ 21,443 $ = $ 21,443
Finite-lived intangible assets:
Licenses 15,847 (4,807) 11,040 15,847 (4,490) 11,357
Trade names 2,477 (1,061) 1,416 2,477 (1,020) 1,457
Customer relationships 886 (538) 348 886 451) 435
Designs 460 (364) 96 460 (330) 130
Patents 584 (40) 544 584 (23) 561
Total $ 41,697 $ (6,810) $ 34,887 $ 41,697 $ (6,314) $ 35383

NOTE E - BANK CREDIT FACILITY

The Company has a $150 million secured credit facility, with an accordion feature for an additional $50 million, that expires in April 2011 (the “Credit Facility”). Borrowings
under the Credit Facility are secured by all assets of the Company. Under the terms of the Credit Facility, the Company is required to satisfy certain financial covenants, including
covenants providing limitations on indebtedness, sale of assets and capital expenditures, a maximum leverage ratio and a minimum interest coverage ratio. At June 30, 2008, the
Company was in compliance with these covenants. Borrowings under the Credit Facility have different interest rate options that are based on either, (i) an alternate base rate, (ii)
the LIBOR rate, or (iii) the lender’s cost of funds rate, plus in each case a margin based on a leverage ratio. In April 2008, the Credit Facility was amended to revise certain
financial covenants, increase the applicable margin rates and establish a borrowing base calculation.

At June 30, 2008, the Company had $2.8 million of open letters of credit and $95.8 million of borrowings outstanding under the Credit Facility. Interest rates on outstanding
borrowings at June 30, 2008 ranged from 3.64% to 5.00%. The availability under the Credit Facility at June 30, 2008 was $19.8 million. The Company has interest rate swap and
collar agreements (see Note G) with an aggregate notional amount of $55.2 million at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007. The Company entered into these agreements to
effectively fix the interest rate on a portion of its borrowings under the Credit Facility. The agreements have maturity dates that exceed one year as the Company does not intend to
repay an equivalent amount of debt within one year. Accordingly, $55.2 million of debt outstanding under the Credit Facility at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, has been
classified as long-term debt.




LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(unaudited)

NOTE F - CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The Company has outstanding $75 million aggregate principal amount of 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 (the “Notes”). The Notes are convertible into shares of the
Company’s common stock at a conversion price of $28.00 per share, subject to adjustment in certain events. The Notes bear interest at 4.75% per annum, payable semiannually in
arrears on January 15 and July 15 of each year and are unsubordinated except with respect to the Company’s debt to the extent secured by the Company’s assets. The Notes mature
on July 15, 2011. The Company may not redeem the Notes at any time prior to maturity.

The Notes are convertible at the option of the holder anytime prior to the close of business on the business day prior to the maturity date. Upon conversion, the Company may elect
to deliver either shares of the Company’s common stock, cash or a combination of cash and shares of the Company’s common stock in satisfaction of the Company’s obligations

upon conversion of the Notes. At any time prior to the 26th trading day preceding the maturity date, the Company may irrevocably elect to satisfy in cash the Company’s
conversion obligation with respect to the principal amount of the Notes to be converted after the date of such election, with any remaining amount to be satisfied in shares of the
Company’s common stock. The election would be in the Company’s sole discretion without the consent of the holders of the Notes. The conversion rate of the Notes may be
adjusted upon the occurrence of certain events that would dilute the Company’s outstanding common stock. In addition, holders that convert their Notes in connection with certain
fundamental changes, such as a change in control, may be entitled to a make whole premium in the form of an increase in the conversion rate. If the Notes are not converted prior to
the maturity date the Company is required to pay the holders of the Notes the principal amount of the Notes in cash upon maturity.

The Company has reserved 2,678,571 shares of common stock for issuance upon conversion of the Notes. Such shares have been registered and the Notes include a registration
rights agreement that would require the Company to pay liquidated damages to the holders of the Notes if the Company fails to keep the registration statement effective.

NOTE G - DERIVATIVES

The Company has interest rate swap agreements with an aggregate notional amount of $50 million and interest rate collar agreements with an aggregate notional amount of $40.2
million to manage interest rate exposure in connection with its variable interest rate borrowings, and a credit default swap with a notional amount of $1 million to manage credit
exposure related to certain accounts receivable. The interest rate swap and collar agreements expire in 2010 and the credit default swap expires in 2009. Certain interest rate swap
agreements with an aggregate notional amount of $35 million and the credit default swap were not designated as hedges under SFAS 133 and the fair value gains or losses from
these swap agreements are recognized in earnings. The effect of recording these interest rate swap agreements at fair value resulted in unrealized gains of $59,000 and $10,000 for
the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, respectively, which is included in interest expense. An interest rate swap agreement with a notional amount of $15 million and the
interest rate collar agreements were designated as cash flow hedges under SFAS 133. The effective portion of the fair value gains or losses on these agreements is recorded in other
comprehensive loss. The effect of recording these agreements at fair value resulted in an unrealized gain of $712,000 (net of taxes of $526,000) for the three months ended June 30,
2008 and an unrealized loss of $77,000 (net of taxes of $58,000) for the six months ended June 30, 2008. No amounts recorded in other comprehensive loss are expected to be
reclassified to interest expense in the next twelve months. The fair value of the above derivatives have been obtained from the counterparties to the agreements and are based on
Level 2 observable inputs using proprietary models and reasonable estimates about relevant future market conditions. The aggregate fair value of the Company’s derivative
instruments at June 30, 2008 was a liability of $857,000, which is included in deferred rent and other long-term liabilities.
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LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(unaudited)

NOTE H - STOCK OPTIONS

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information for the six months ended June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Weighted
Weighted average
average remaining Aggregate
exercise contractual life intrinsic
Options price (years) value

Options outstanding, January 1, 2008 1,808,900 $22.69
Grants 20,000 10.32
Exercises (1,500) 5.50
Cancellations (38,000) 27.49
Options outstanding, June 30, 2008 1,789,400 22.46 5.75 $490,000
Options exercisable, June 30, 2008 1,094,090 21.35 5.19 $490,000

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value that would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their
stock options on June 30, 2008. The intrinsic value is calculated for each in-the-money stock option as the difference between the closing price of the Company’s common stock on
June 30, 2008 and the exercise price.

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the six months ended June 30, 2008 was $8,700. The intrinsic value of a stock option that is exercised is calculated as the
difference between the quoted market price of the Company’s common stock at the date of exercise and the exercise price of the stock option multiplied by the number of shares
exercised.

The Company recognized stock option expense of $615,000 and $533,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and $1.2 million and $966,000 for the
six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock options at June 30, 2008, before the effect of income taxes,
was $6.0 million and is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.84 years.

The weighted average per share grant date fair value of stock options granted during the six months ended June 30, 2008 was $3.40.

The fair value of the stock options granted during the six months ended June 30, 2008 was estimated at the date of grant using the following weighted average assumptions:
Volatility—40.2%, Expected term—o6 years, Risk-free interest rate—2.72% and Expected dividend yield—2.42%.

-11-




NOTE I - LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.

June 30, 2008
(unaudited)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basic loss per common share has been computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of shares of the Company’s common stock outstanding. Diluted loss per
common share adjusts net loss and basic loss per common share for the effect of all potentially dilutive shares of the Company’s common stock. The calculations of basic and

diluted loss per common share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

Net loss- basic
Net interest expense, 4.75% Convertible Notes
Net loss- diluted

Weighted average shares outstanding — basic
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options
4.75% Convertible Notes
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted

Basic and diluted loss per common share

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

$ (3,183) $ (2,026) $ 9,180) $ (3,309)
$ (3,183) $ (2,026) $ 9,180) $ (3,309)

11,967 13,300 11,966 13,295

11,967 13,300 11,966 13,295
$ 0.27) $ 0.15)  § 0.77) § (0.25)

The computation of diluted loss per common share for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 excludes: (i) options to purchase 1,529,000 shares and 1,784,000 shares,
respectively; and (ii) 2,678,571 shares of the Company’s common stock issuable upon the conversion of the Company’s 4.75% Convertible Notes and related interest expense. The
computation of diluted loss per common share for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 excludes: (i) options to purchase 1,520,000 shares and 1,593,000 shares,
respectively; and (ii) 2,678,571 shares of the Company’s common stock issuable upon the conversion of the Company’s 4.75% Convertible Notes and related interest expense. The
above shares were excluded due to their antidilutive effect as a result of the losses during the periods.

-12-




LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(unaudited)

NOTE J - INCOME TAXES

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”), Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. FIN 48 provides guidance for the financial statement
recognition, measurement and disclosure of uncertain tax positions recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income

Taxes. Tax positions must meet a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position
taken. The Company adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007.

The estimated value of the Company’s tax positions at June 30, 2008 is a liability of $154,000 (including interest of $54,000) and consisted of the following (in thousands):

Balance as of January 1, 2008 $ 1,437
Decrease — tax positions in prior years (1,283)
Balance as of June 30, 2008 $ 154

If the Company’s tax positions are sustained by the taxing authorities in favor of the Company, the Company’s income tax provision would be reduced by $154,000. On a quarterly
basis the Company evaluates its FIN 48 tax positions and revises its estimates accordingly. During the quarter ended June 30, 2008 the Company reversed $1.3 million of its FIN 48
reserves as a result of the expiration of the statute of limitations on a certain tax year, resulting in an increase in the income tax benefit recorded during the period.

The Company has identified federal, New York and New Jersey as “major” tax jurisdictions. The periods subject to examination for the Company’s federal return are years 2003
through 2006. The periods subject to examination for the Company’s New York return are years 2003 through 2006. The periods subject to examination for the Company’s New
Jersey return are years 2001 through 2006.

The Company’s policy for recording interest and penalties is to record such items as a component of income taxes. Interest and penalties were not material to the Company’s
financial position, results of operations or cash flows as of and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007.
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LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(unaudited)

NOTE K - BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company operates in two reportable business segments — wholesale and direct-to-consumer. The wholesale segment is the Company’s primary business that designs, markets
and distributes household products to retailers and distributors. The direct-to-consumer segment is comprised of the Company’s business that sells household products directly to
the consumer through Company-operated factory and outlet stores, and catalog and Internet operations. At June 30, 2008, the Company operated 44 factory stores utilizing the
Pfaltzgraff® brand name and 8 outlet stores utilizing the Farberware® brand name. As described in Note M, the Company closed 30 underperforming Farberware® outlet stores
and Pfaltzgraff® factory stores during the period from December 2007 to March 2008. The Company has segmented its operations in a manner that reflects how management
reviews and evaluates the results of its operations. While both segments distribute similar products, the segments are distinct due to their different types of customers and the
different methods used to sell, market and distribute the products.

Management evaluates the performance of the wholesale and direct-to-consumer segments based on net sales and income (loss) from operations. Such measures give recognition to
specifically identifiable operating costs such as cost of sales, distribution expenses and selling, general and administrative expenses. Certain general and administrative expenses
such as senior executive salaries and benefits, stock compensation, director fees and accounting, legal and consulting fees are not allocated to the specific segments and are
reflected as unallocated corporate expenses.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
(in thousands)

Net sales
Wholesale $ 79856 $ 77422 S 160,234 $ 166,594
Direct-to-consumer 12,543 13,949 30,359 28,564
Total net sales $ 92399 $ 91371 $ 190,593 $§ 195,158

Income (loss) from operations

Wholesale $ (1,222) $ 3461 $ ®77) $ 9,013
Direct-to-consumer (1) (2,943) (2,957) (9,468) (7,060)

Unallocated corporate expenses (2,780) (2,254) (5,384) (4,255)
Total loss from operations $ (6,945) $ (1,750) $ (15,729) $ (2,302)

Depreciation and amortization

Wholesale $ (2,567) $ (1,943) $ 4,947) $ (3,632)

Direct-to-consumer (226) (323) (449) (669)

Total depreciation and amortization $ (2,793) $ (2,266) $ (5,396) $ (4,301)
Note:

(1)  Loss from operations for the Direct-to-consumer segment for three and six months ended June 30, 2008 includes restructuring expenses of $107,000 and $3.0 million,
respectively.
See Note M.
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LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(unaudited)
NOTE L - CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a defendant in various lawsuits and from time-to-time, regulatory proceedings which may require the recall of its products, arising in the ordinary course of its
business. Management does not expect the outcome of any of these matters, individually or collectively, to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition.

In addition to the matters referred to in the foregoing paragraph, on April 10, 2007, a complaint was filed against the Company in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Pennsylvania (the “Court”), in which the Plaintiff alleged that the Company violated the Fair and Accurate Credit Transaction Act of 2003. The Company reached a
settlement with the Plaintiff which has received final approval of the Court. The settlement is not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

NOTE M - OTHER

Dividends

Dividends declared in 2008 are as follows:

Dividend Date declared Date of record Payment date
$0.0625 January 23, 2008 February 8, 2008 February 15, 2008
$0.0625 March 4, 2008 May 2, 2008 May 16, 2008
$0.0625 June 5, 2008 August 1, 2008 August 15,2008

Stock repurchase plan
The Board of Directors of the Company has authorized a program to repurchase up to $40.0 million of the Company’s common stock through open market purchases or privately-
negotiated transactions. Through June 30, 2008 the Company has purchased in the open market and retired a total of 1,362,505 shares of its common stock for a total cost of $22.7

million under the program. There were no purchases during the six months ended June 30, 2008.
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LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008
(unaudited)

NOTE M - OTHER (continued)

Store closings

In December 2007, management of the Company commenced a plan to close 27 underperforming Farberware® outlet stores and 3 underperforming Pfaltzgraff® factory stores. All
30 stores were closed by the end of the first quarter. In connection with the store closings, the Company has incurred certain restructuring related costs for store lease obligations,

consulting fees, retention bonuses and severance, and other incremental costs related to the closures. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, the Company
recognized $107,000 and $3.0 million of such costs, respectively, consisting of the following:

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended
June 30, 2008 June 30, 2008
(in thousands)
Store lease obligations $ _ $ 2,300
Consulting fees — 393
Retention bonuses and severance — 141
Other related costs 107 153
Total $ 107§ 2,987

The following is a roll-forward of the amounts included in accrued expenses related to the store closures:

Balance Balance
March 31, 2008 Charges Payments June 30, 2008
(in thousands)
Store lease obligations $ 2,300 — $ (1,734) 566
Consulting fees 192 — (192) —
Retention bonuses and severance 188 — (188) —
Other related costs 49 107 (156) —
Total $ 2,729 107 $ (2,270) 566
Supplemental cash flow information
Six Months Ended
June 30,
2008 2007
(in thousands)
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest $ 3,838 $ 3,157
Cash paid for taxes 3,826 5,347
Non-cash investing activities:
Liabilities assumed in business acquisition $ 2,718 $ —
Deferred cash purchase price of business acquisition 5,000 —
Reclassification of property and equipment to building held for sale — 5,073
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LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

(unaudited)
NOTE M - OTHER (continued)
Comprehensive loss
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
(in thousands)
Net loss $ (3,183) § (2,026) $ (9,180) $ (3,309)
Derivative fair value
adjustment, net of taxes 712 — 77) —

Total comprehensive loss $ 2471) $ (2,026) $ (9,257) $ (3,309)
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Lifetime Brands, Inc.:

We have reviewed the condensed consolidated balance sheet of Lifetime Brands, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of June 30, 2008 and the related condensed consolidated
statements of operations for the three and six month periods ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 and cash flows for the six month periods ended June 30, 2008 and 2007. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.

We conducted our review in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). A review of interim financial information consists
principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit
conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial
statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the condensed consolidated financial statements referred to above for them to be in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have previously audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet of the Company
as of December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended not presented herein and in our report
dated March 14, 2008, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying condensed
consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated balance sheet from which it was derived.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Melville, New York
August 4, 2008
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statements” as defined by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements
include information concerning Lifetime Brands, Inc.’s (the “Company’s”) plans, objectives, goals, strategies, future events, future revenues, performance, capital expenditures,
financing needs and other information that is not historical information. Many of these statements appear, in particular, in Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations. When used in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the words “estimates,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “projects,” “plans,” “intends,” “believes”
and variations of such words or similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements, including, without limitation, the
Company’s examination of historical operating trends, are based upon the Company’s current expectations and various assumptions. The Company believes there is a reasonable
basis for its expectations and assumptions, but there can be no assurance that the Company will realize its expectations or that the Company’s assumptions will prove correct.

” < ” < 2 <, 2 <,

There are a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly
Report. Important factors that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those expressed as forward-looking statements are set forth in the Company’s 2007
Annual Report on Form 10-K in Part I, Item 1A under the heading Risk Factors. Such risks, uncertainties and other important factors include, among others:

e  Changes in demand for the Company’s products and the success of new products;

o  The level of competition in the Company’s industry;

e  Changes in general economic and business conditions which could affect customer payment practices or consumer spending;
e  Industry trends;

o  The Company’s dependence on third party foreign sources of supply and foreign manufacturing;
e  Fluctuations in costs of raw materials;

e Increases in costs relating to manufacturing and transportation of products;

o  Complexities associated with a multi-channel and multi-brand business;

e Limited experience in the tabletop and home décor product categories;

e  The Company’s relationship with key licensors;

o  Encroachments on the Company’s intellectual property;

e  The Company’s relationship with key customers;

e  Product liability claims or product recalls;

o  The timing of delivery of products to customers;

e  The Company’s restructuring of its direct-to-consumer retail business;

e  Departure of key personnel;

e Internal development of products by the Company’s customers;

e  Noncompliance with applicable regulations including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002;
e  Risks associated with the Company’s Internet operations;

e  Future acquisitions and integration of acquired businesses;

e  Technological risks;

e  Network security risks;

. Risks associated with indebtedness; and

e  The seasonal nature of the Company’s business.

There may be other factors that may cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements. Except as may be required by law, the Company
undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise forward-looking statements which may be made to reflect events or circumstances after the date made or to reflect the
occurrence of unanticipated events.
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ABOUT THE COMPANY

The Company is one of North America’s leading resources for nationally branded kitchenware, tabletop and home décor products. The Company’s three major product categories
are Food Preparation, Tabletop and Home Décor. The Company markets several product lines within each of these product categories and under each of the Company’s brands,
primarily targeting moderate to premium price points, through every major level of trade. The Company’s competitive advantage is based on strong brands, an emphasis on
innovation and new product development and excellent sourcing capabilities. The Company owns or licenses many of the leading brands in its industries including Farberware®,
KitchenAid®, Cuisinart®, Pfaltzgraff® and in June 2008 added Mikasa®. Over the last several years, the Company’s sales growth has come from expanding product offerings
within the Company’s current categories by developing existing brands, and acquiring new brands and product categories. Key factors in the Company’s growth strategy have been,
and will continue to be, the selective use and management of the Company’s strong brands, and the Company’s ability to provide a steady stream of new products and designs. A
significant element of this strategy is the Company’s in-house design and development team that creates new products, packaging and merchandising concepts.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company operates in two reportable business segments — wholesale and direct-to-consumer. The wholesale segment is the Company’s primary business that designs, markets
and distributes household products to retailers and distributors. The direct-to-consumer segment is comprised of the Company’s business that sells household products directly to
the consumer through 52 Company-operated factory and outlet stores operated utilizing the Pfaltzgraff® and Farberware® names, and its catalog and Internet operations.

In December 2007, the Company commenced a plan to close 27 underperforming Farberware® outlet stores and 3 underperforming Pfaltzgraff® factory stores. All 30 stores were
closed by the end of the first quarter. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, the Company recognized $107,000 and $3.0 million in pre-tax charges related to these
store closings, respectively, consisting primarily of store lease obligations.

INVESTMENT IN MIKASA

On June 6, 2008, the Company acquired the business and certain assets of Mikasa, Inc. (“Mikasa”) from Arc International SA. Mikasa is a leading provider of dinnerware, crystal
stemware, barware, flatware and decorative accessories. Mikasa’s products are distributed through department stores, specialty stores and big box chains, as well as through its own
Internet website. The purchase price was $20.1 million.

INVESTMENT IN GRUPO VASCONIA S.A.B.

In December 2007, the Company acquired approximately 30% of the capital stock of Grupo Vasconia, S.A.B. (“Vasconia”), (formerly known as, Ekco, S.A.B.), a manufacturer and
distributor of aluminum disks, cookware and related items. Shares of Vasconia’s capital stock are traded on the Bolsa Mexicana de Valores, S.A. de C.V., the Mexico Stock
Exchange, under the symbol BMV: EKCO. The Company accounts for its investment in Vasconia using the equity method of accounting and has recorded its proportionate share of
Vasconia’s net income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2008, net of taxes, as equity in earnings of Vasconia in the Company’s statement of operations.

SEASONALITY

The Company’s business and working capital needs are highly seasonal, with a majority of sales occurring in the third and fourth quarters. In 2007, 2006 and 2005, net sales for the
third and fourth quarters accounted for 61%, 65% and 71% of total annual net sales, respectively. Operating profits earned in the third and fourth quarters of 2007, 2006 and 2005
accounted for 111%, 99% and 83% of total annual operating profits, respectively. In anticipation of the pre-holiday shipping season, inventory levels increase primarily in the June
through October time period.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

There have been no material changes to the Company’s critical accounting policies and estimates from the information provided in Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth statement of operations data of the Company as a percentage of net sales for the periods indicated:

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales 59.8 56.8 60.3 57.9
Distribution expenses 13.9 12.8 13.7 12.8
Selling, general and administrative expenses 33.8 323 32.7 30.5
Restructuring expenses 0.1 = 1.6 —
Loss from operations (7.6) (1.9 (8.3) (1.2)
Interest expense 2.3) (1.7) 2.2) (1.6)
Lo o e iy = 5 ws ey
Income tax benefit 5.5 1.4 5.1 1.1
Equity in earnings of Grupo Vasconia, S.A.B., 08 o 05 .
net of taxes _
Net loss (3.6)% 2.2)% (4.9)% 1. 7%

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 AS COMPARED TO THE THREE MONTHS ENDED
JUNE 30, 2007

Net Sales
Net sales for the three months ended June 30, 2008 were $92.4 million, an increase of 1.1% compared to net sales of $91.4 million for the 2007 period.

Net sales for the wholesale segment for the three months ended June 30, 2008 were $79.9 million, an increase of $2.5 million or 3.2% compared to net sales of $77.4 million for the
2007 period. The increase was primarily attributable to net sales from Mikasa which the Company acquired in June 2008.

Net sales for the direct-to-consumer segment for the three months ended June 30, 2008 were $12.5 million compared to $13.9 million for the 2007 period. The decrease was
primarily due to the 30 stores the Company closed as part of its previously announced restructuring plan. Excluding net sales related to these closed stores, net sales for the direct-
to-consumer segment in 2007 were $11.6 million. The increase over the 2007 period excluding these closed stores is attributable to Internet and catalog sales which benefited from
the earlier release in 2008 of the spring and summer catalogs.
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Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the three months ended June 30, 2008 were $55.3 million compared to $51.9 million for the 2007 period. Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales was 59.8% for
the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to 56.8% for the 2007 period.

Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales for the wholesale segment was 63.0% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to 60.7% for the 2007 period. The increase in
cost of sales as a percentage of net sales was primarily attributable to lower margins associated with the Company’s continued effort to reduce inventory levels.

Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales for the direct-to-consumer segment increased to 40.0% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 from 35.3% for the 2007 period. The
increase was primarily due to lower margins as a result of increased promotional activity and higher freight costs.

Distribution expenses

Distribution expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2008 were $12.8 million compared to $11.7 million for the 2007 period. Distribution expenses as a percentage of net
sales were 13.9% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 12.8% for the 2007 period.

Distribution expenses as a percentage of net sales for the wholesale segment were 12.6% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to 11.8% for the 2007 period. The
increase was due primarily to the integration expenses of consolidating the Company’s West Coast distribution facilities into the Company’s new main West Coast distribution
center located in Fontana, California and transitional service expenses related to the Mikasa business the Company acquired during the 2008 period, partially offset by improved
labor efficiency at the Company’s other distribution centers.

Distribution expenses as a percentage of net sales for the direct-to-consumer segment were 21.6% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to 18.7% for the 2007
period. The increased percentage is due to the proportional growth of the Company’s Internet and catalog business which structurally has higher distribution expenses compared to
the retail stores. The increase was partially offset by lower inventory levels and improved labor efficiency.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2008 were $31.2 million, an increase of 5.8% over $29.5 million for the 2007 period.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2008 for the wholesale segment were $20.7 million, an increase of $2.8 million or 15.6% over the
$17.9 million for the 2007 period. As a percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses were 25.9% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to
23.1% for the 2007 period. The increase was primarily due to transitional service expenses related to the Mikasa business the Company acquired during the 2008 period and to a

lesser extent an increase in payroll costs.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2008 for the direct-to-consumer segment were $7.7 million compared to $9.3 million for the 2007
period. The decrease was due primarily to expense reduction efforts, particularly the store closings.

Unallocated corporate expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were $2.8 million and $2.3 million, respectively. The increase was primarily due to higher
professional fees.

Restructuring expenses
During the three months ended June 30, 2008 the Company recorded restructuring expenses of $107,000 consisting of incremental costs related to the store closings.
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Interest expense

Interest expense for the three months ended June 30, 2008 was $2.1 million compared to $1.5 million for the 2007 period. The increase in interest expense was primarily
attributable to higher borrowings outstanding under the Company’s Credit Facility, partially offset by lower interest rates during the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to
the 2007 period.

Income tax benefit

The income tax benefit for the three months ended June 30, 2008 was $5.1 million compared to $1.3 million for the 2007 period. The Company’s effective income tax rate was
56.8% for the three months ended June 30, 2008 compared to 38.5% for the 2007 period. During the three months ended June 30, 2008 the Company recorded an income tax
benefit as a result of a decrease in the Company’s tax reserves due to the expiration of the statute of limitations on a certain tax year. Excluding the benefit of the reversal of the tax
reserve, the Company’s effective tax rate would have been 42.5%. The increase in the Company’s effective tax rate in the 2008 period, excluding the benefit of the reversal of the
tax reserve, was due primarily to stock option expense that is not deductible for income tax purposes.

SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 AS COMPARED TO THE SIX MONTHS ENDED
JUNE 30, 2007

Net Sales
Net sales for the six months ended June 30, 2008 were $190.6 million, a decrease of 2.4% compared to net sales of $195.2 million for the 2007 period.

Net sales for the wholesale segment for the six months ended June 30, 2008 were $160.2 million, a decrease of $6.4 million or 3.8% compared to net sales of $166.6 million for the
2007 period. Excluding Mikasa net sales of $3.1 million, net sales for the wholesale segment were $157.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008, a decrease of $9.5
million or 5.7% compared to the 2007 period. The Company experienced declines in net sales across all major product categories during the six months ended June 30, 2008.
Management attributes such declines to the extremely challenging retail sales environment during the six months ended June 30, 2008, as evidenced by significant decreases in
same-store sales at a majority of the Company’s customers.

Net sales for the direct-to-consumer segment for the six months ended June 30, 2008 were $30.4 million compared to $28.6 million for the 2007 period. The increase was primarily
attributable to increased catalog and Internet sales due to the earlier release in 2008 of the spring and summer catalogs and to a lesser extent going-out-of-business sales at the 30
stores the Company closed.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the six months ended June 30, 2008 were $114.9 million compared to $113.0 million for the 2007 period. Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales was 60.3% for
the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to 57.9% for the 2007 period.

Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales for the wholesale segment was 63.1% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to 61.5% for the 2007 period. The increase in cost
of sales as a percentage of net sales was primarily attributable to lower margins associated with the Company’s continued effort to reduce inventory levels and higher sales

allowances during the six months ended June 30, 2008.

Cost of sales as a percentage of net sales for the direct-to-consumer segment increased to 45.4% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 from 37.1% for the 2007 period. The
increase was primarily due to lower margins as a result of increased promotional activity and higher freight costs.
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Distribution expenses

Distribution expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2008 were $26.2 million compared to $25.0 million for the 2007 period. Distribution expenses as a percentage of net sales
were 13.7% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 12.8% for the 2007 period.

Distribution expenses as a percentage of net sales for the wholesale segment were 12.7% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to 11.4% for the 2007 period. The
increase was due primarily to the integration expenses of consolidating the Company’s West Coast distribution facilities into the Company’s new main West Coast distribution
center located in Fontana, California and transitional service expenses related to the Mikasa business the Company acquired during the 2008 period, and to a lesser extent an

increase in freight-out expenses due to fuel surcharges. The increase was partially offset by improved labor efficiency at the Company’s other distribution centers.

Distribution expenses as a percentage of net sales for the direct-to-consumer segment were approximately 19.1% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to 21.0% for the
2007 period. The decrease was due primarily to reduced third party warehouse costs as a result of planned decreases in inventory levels and improved labor efficiency.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2008 were $62.3 million, an increase of 4.9% over $59.4 million for the 2007 period.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2008 for the wholesale segment were $39.7 million, an increase of $3.5 million or 9.7% over the
$36.2 million for the 2007 period. As a percentage of net sales, selling, general and administrative expenses were 24.8% for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to 21.7%

for the 2007 period. The increase was primarily due to transitional service expenses related to the Mikasa business the Company acquired during the 2008 period.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2008 for the direct-to-consumer segment were $17.2 million compared to $19.0 million for the 2007
period. The decrease was primarily due to expense reduction efforts, particularly the store closings.

Unallocated corporate expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 were $5.4 million and $4.3 million, respectively. The increase was primarily due to higher
professional fees and stock option expense.

Restructuring expenses

During the six months ended June 30, 2008 the Company recorded restructuring expenses related to the store closings of $3.0 million consisting primarily of store lease obligations
and to a lesser extent, consulting fees, retention bonuses and severance, and other incremental costs related to the closures.
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Interest expense

Interest expense for the six months ended June 30, 2008 was $4.1 million compared to $3.1 million for the 2007 period. The increase in interest expense was primarily attributable
to higher borrowings outstanding under the Company’s Credit Facility, partially offset by lower interest rates during the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to the 2007
period.

Income tax benefit

The income tax benefit for the six months ended June 30, 2008 was $9.7 million compared to $2.1 million for the 2007 period. The Company’s effective income tax rate was 49.0%
for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to 38.5% for the 2007 period. During the six months ended June 30, 2008 the Company recorded an income tax benefit as a result
of a decrease in the Company’s tax reserves due to the expiration of the statute of limitations on a certain tax year. Excluding the benefit of the reversal of the tax reserve, the
Company’s effective tax rate would have been 42.5%. The increase in the Company’s effective tax rate in the 2008 period, excluding the benefit of the reversal of the tax reserve,
was due primarily to stock option expense that is not deductible for income tax purposes.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company’s principal sources of cash to fund liquidity needs are: (i) cash provided by operating activities and (ii) borrowings available under its Credit Facility. The Company’s
primary uses of funds consist of working capital requirements, capital expenditures, payment of principal and interest on its debt, payment of cash dividends and business
acquisitions.

At June 30, 2008, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $1.2 million, compared to $4.2 million at December 31, 2007.

Borrowings under the Company’s Credit Facility increased to $95.8 million at June 30, 2008 which represents an increase of $27.1 million from December 31, 2007. The increase
was primarily due to the acquisition of Mikasa, the operating loss during the period, working capital uses and capital expenditures.

Credit facility

The Company has a $150 million secured credit facility, with an accordion feature for an additional $50 million, that expires in April 2011 (the “Credit Facility”). Borrowings
under the Credit Facility are secured by all assets of the Company. Under the terms of the Credit Facility, the Company is required to satisfy certain financial covenants, including
covenants providing limitations on indebtedness, sale of assets and capital expenditures, a maximum leverage ratio and a minimum interest coverage ratio. At June 30, 2008, the
Company was in compliance with these covenants. Borrowings under the Credit Facility have different interest rate options that are based on either, (i) an alternate base rate, (ii)
the LIBOR rate, or (iii) the lender’s cost of funds rate, plus in each case a margin based on a leverage ratio. In April 2008, the Credit Facility was amended to revise certain
financial covenants, increase the applicable margin rates and establish a borrowing base calculation.

At June 30, 2008, the Company had $2.8 million of open letters of credit and $95.8 million of borrowings outstanding under its Credit Facility. Interest rates on outstanding
borrowings at June 30, 2008 ranged from 3.64% to 5.00%. The availability under the Credit Facility at June 30, 2008 was $19.8 million. The Company has interest rate swap and
collar agreements with an aggregate notional amount of $55.2 million at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007. The Company entered into these agreements to effectively fix the
interest rate on a portion of its borrowings under the Credit Facility. The agreements have maturity dates that exceed one year as the Company does not intend to repay an
equivalent amount of debt within one year. Accordingly, $55.2 million of debt outstanding under the Credit Facility at June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, has been classified as
long-term debt.
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Convertible Notes

The Company has outstanding $75 million aggregate principal amount of 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2011 (the “Notes”). The Notes are convertible into shares of the
Company’s common stock at a conversion price of $28.00 per share, subject to adjustment in certain events. The Notes bear interest at 4.75% per annum, payable semiannually in
arrears on January 15 and July 15 of each year and are unsubordinated except with respect to the Company’s debt to the extent secured by the Company’s assets. The Notes mature
on July 15, 2011. The Notes are convertible at the option of the holder anytime prior to the close of business on the business day prior to the maturity date. Upon conversion, the
Company may elect to deliver either shares of the Company’s common stock, cash or a combination of cash and shares of the Company’s common stock in satisfaction of the
Company’s obligations upon conversion of the Notes. If the Notes are not converted prior to the maturity date the Company is required to pay the holders of the Notes the principal
amount of the Notes in cash upon maturity.

Share repurchase program

The Board of Directors of the Company has authorized a program to repurchase up to $40.0 million of the Company’s common stock through open market purchases or privately-
negotiated transactions. As of June 30, 2008 the Company had purchased in the open market and retired a total of 1,362,505 shares of its common stock for a total cost of $22.7
million under the program. There were no purchases during the six months ended June 30, 2008.

Dividends

The Company has declared the following dividends in 2008:

Dividend Date declared Date of record Payment date
$0.0625 January 23, 2008 February 8, 2008 February 15, 2008
$0.0625 March 4, 2008 May 2, 2008 May 16, 2008
$0.0625 June 5, 2008 August 1, 2008 August 15, 2008

Operating activities

Cash used by operating activities was $11.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to $19.0 million in the 2007 period. Working capital increased $9.2 million
during the 2008 period compared to an increase of $22.2 million during the 2007 period. The balance of cash used in operating activities for the 2008 period was due to the
operating loss during the period.

Investing activities

Cash used in investing activities was $17.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to $13.9 million in the 2007 period. The 2008 increase is due primarily to the
cash paid at closing of $12.3 million for the acquisition of the business and certain assets of Mikasa. 2007 investing activities included capital expenditures of $11.8 million related
to leasehold improvements at the Company’s then new corporate headquarters and amounts paid in connection with the Company’s implementation of its SAP business enterprise
system during the second quarter of 2007. The Company’s 2008 planned capital expenditures are estimated at $10 million. These expenditures are expected to be funded from
current operations and, if necessary, borrowings under the Company’s Credit Facility.

Financing activities

Cash provided by financing activities was $25.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2008 compared to $33.9 million for the 2007 period. In 2008, net borrowings under the
Company’s Credit Facility were $27.1 million compared to $35.6 million for the 2007 period.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact the consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company. The Company is exposed to market
risk associated with changes in interest rates. The Company’s Credit Facility bears interest at variable rates and, therefore, the Company is subject to increases and decreases in
interest expense resulting from fluctuations in interest rates. The Company has interest rate swap agreements with an aggregate notional amount of $50 million and interest rate
collar agreements with an aggregate notional amount of $40.2 million to manage interest rate exposure in connection with these variable interest rate borrowings. There have been
no changes in interest rates that would have a material impact on the consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company for the three months ended
June 30, 2008.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

(a)  Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company (its principal executive officer and principal financial officer, respectively) have concluded,
based on their evaluation as of June 30, 2008, that the Company’s controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company
in the reports filed by it under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in
the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and include controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the
Company in such reports is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

(b)  Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Company’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes in the Company’s risk factors from those disclosed in the Company’s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

1. The following proposals were submitted to a vote of the stockholders of the Company and approved at the Company’s annual meeting of stockholders held on June 5,
2008:

PROPOSAL NO. 1

Election of the following eight directors to serve until the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until their successors are duly elected and qualified:

For Withheld
David Dangoor 9,589,126 1,473,185
Michael Jeary 9,560,555 1,530,327
Sheldon Misher 9,565,043 1,521,351
Cherrie Nanninga 9,558,355 1,534,727
Craig Phillips 7,465,757 5,719,923
Ronald Shiftan 7,455,973 5,739,491
Jeffrey Siegel 7,453,590 5,744,257
William Westerfield 9,652,777 1,345,883

PROPOSAL NO. 2

Ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm of the Company:

For Against Abstain
10,708,459 60,479 216,525

2. The following proposal was submitted to a vote of the stockholders of the Company and not approved at the Company’s annual meeting of stockholders held on June 5,
2008:

PROPOSAL NO. 3
Approval of an amendment to the Company’s 2000 Long-Term Incentive Plan to increase the number of shares of the Company’s common stock available

for grant under the plan by 1,000,000 to 3,500,000:

For Against Abstain
4,421,174 4,311,100 276,894
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit No.

31.1

32.1

99.1

Certification by Jeffrey Siegel, Chief Executive Officer and President, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)_or Rule 15d-14(a)_of the Securities and Exchange Ac

Certification by Jeffrey Siegel, Chief Executive Officer and President, and Laurence Winoker, Senior Vice President — Finance, Treasurer and Chie
Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Asset Purchase Agreement among Mikasa Inc., American Commercial Incorporated, Mikasa Licensing Inc., Arc International, SA, TMC Acquisitiot
Inc. and Lifetime Brands, Inc. dated as of June 6, 2008.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

Lifetime Brands, Inc.

[s/ Jeffrey Siegel August 7, 2008
Jeffrey Siegel

Chief Executive Officer and President

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Laurence Winoker August 7, 2008
Laurence Winoker

Senior Vice President — Finance, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Jeffrey Siegel, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Lifetime Brands, Inc. (“the registrant™);

2.  Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-14 and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))) for the registrant and have:

a.  designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared,

b.  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d.  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a.  all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

/s/ Jeffrey Siegel
Jeffrey Siegel
Chief Executive Officer and President

Date: August 7, 2008




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Laurence Winoker, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Lifetime Brands, Inc. (“the registrant™);

2.  Based on my knowledge, this quarterly report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this quarterly report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-14 and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))) for the registrant and have:

a.  designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared,

b.  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d.  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a.  all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

/s/ Laurence Winoker

Laurence Winoker

Senior Vice President — Finance,
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer

Date: August 7, 2008




Exhibit 32.1

Certification by Jeffrey Siegel, Chief Executive Officer and President, and Laurence Winoker, Senior Vice President — Finance, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer,
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

I, Jeffrey Siegel, Chief Executive Officer and President, and I, Laurence Winoker, Senior Vice President — Finance, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer, of Lifetime Brands,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), each hereby certifies that:

(1) The Company’s periodic report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2008 (the “Form 10-Q”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a)
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2) The information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
/s/ Jeffrey Siegel /s/ Laurence Winoker
Jeffrey Siegel Laurence Winoker
Chief Executive Officer and President Senior Vice President- Finance, Treasurer

and Chief Financial Officer

Date: August 7, 2008 Date: August 7, 2008

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 1350 has been provided to Lifetime Brands, Inc. and will be retained by Lifetime Brands, Inc. and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff, upon request.



Exhibit 99.1
ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT
among
MIKASA INC.,
AMERICAN COMMERCIAL INCORPORATED,

MIKASA LICENSING INC.,
ARC INTERNATIONAL, SA,

TMC ACQUISITION INC.

and
LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.

Dated as of June 6, 2008
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ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT dated as of June _, 2008 (this “Agreement”), between MIKASA, INC., a Delaware corporation (“Mikasa”), AMERICAN
COMMERCIAL INCORPORATED, a California Corporation (“American Commercial”), and MIKASA LICENSING INC., a Delaware Corporation (“Mikasa Licensing” and,
together with Mikasa and American Commercial, collectively referred to herein as “Sellers”), ARC INTERNATIONAL, SA, a French corporation and parent company of Sellers
(“ARC” or the “Sellers Affiliate”), TMC ACQUISITION INC., a Delaware corporation (“Purchaser”), and LIFETIME BRANDS, INC., a Delaware corporation and the parent
company of Purchaser (“Purchaser Affiliate™). Sellers, Sellers Affiliate, Purchaser and Purchaser Affiliate are collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”.

WHEREAS, Sellers, directly or indirectly through the Sellers Affiliate, design, develop, market, distribute and sell Mikasa branded and co-branded Products. Sellers
and the Sellers Affiliate wish to sell to Purchaser, and Purchaser wishes to purchase from Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate, only the Transferred Assets (as defined in Section
1.02(a)) of the Businesses (as defined in Section 12.05(b)), upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement. In addition, Purchaser has agreed to assume from Sellers
and the Sellers Affiliate the Assumed Liabilities (as defined in Section 1.04(a)), upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals and of the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements contained herein, and intending to be legally
bound, the Parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE L.
Purchase and Sale of Transferred Assets

SECTION 1.01 Purchase and Sale.

Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, at the Closing (as defined in Section 2.01) Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate agree to sell, transfer,
assign and deliver to Purchaser, and Purchaser agrees to purchase, acquire and accept from Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate, all of Sellers’ and the Sellers Affiliate’s right, title and
interest in, to and under the Transferred Assets as of the Closing in exchange for (i) an aggregate cash payment in immediately available funds in an amount (the “Closing Purchase
Price”) equal to fifty-four percent (54%) of the difference between (w) the Gross Inventory Amount and (x) the Accounts Payable, payable as set forth in Section 2.02(b) and
subject to adjustment in accordance with Section 2.03, (ii) the greater of (y) five percent (5%) of the net sales of the Post-Closing Business for each of the calendar years 2009,
2010 and 2011, and (z) five million dollars ($5,000,000) (the “Deferred Purchase Price”), payable as set forth in Section 2.02(c), and (iii) the assumption by Purchaser of the
Assumed Liabilities. The purchase and sale of the Transferred Assets and the assumption of the Assumed Liabilities are collectively referred to in this Agreement as the
“Acquisition”.




SECTION 1.02  Transferred Assets and Excluded Assets.

(a)  The term “Transferred Assets” means all of Sellers’ and/or the Sellers Affiliate’s right, title and interest in, to and under all of the following
tangible and intangible assets, properties, and business, and other assets as they exist at the time of Closing:

(i) all finished goods inventory and related promotional and demonstration material (x) in transit from manufacturers to any Seller or
(y) located within any Seller’s proprietary or contracted logistics facilities (collectively, the “Sellers Inventory”);

(ii) all registered and unregistered trademarks, trademark registrations and trademark applications set forth in Schedule 1.02(a)(ii),
together with the goodwill associated therewith (collectively, the “Transferred Trademarks™), subject to the execution and delivery at the Closing by Purchaser of a limited royalty
free license (in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, the “Transferred Trademark License”) to the Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate;

(iii) all of Sellers’ patents, design patents and non-US equivalents, service marks, trade names and copyrights, whether registered or
unregistered in any jurisdiction, and all applications therefore, all of Sellers’ technologies, methods, formulations, shapes, patterns, data bases, trade secrets, know-how, inventions,
designs and other intellectual property used in connection with any Transferred Assets or under development for use with any Transferred Assets, all of Sellers” product names, line
names and/or collection names and all rights at common law or otherwise in all of Sellers’ reasonably accessible advertising and sales and marketing materials used in the
promotion of any of the Brands, as defined herein, and all of Sellers’ marks conveyed by this agreement, all domain names used in the Businesses and employing any form of the
name “Mikasa”, the contents of the web pages under such domain names (other than (x) pages related exclusively to the excluded products and (y) the web pages of mikasa-
europe.com, mikasa-fr.com and mikasa-uk.com (provided that the Sellers Affiliate will use its reasonable commercial efforts to cause any content on such pages related to the
Transferred Assets to be supplied or otherwise made available to Purchaser), and all other intellectual property set forth in Schedule 1.02(a)(iii) (collectively, the “Other Transferred
Intellectual Property” and, together with the Transferred Trademarks, the “Transferred Intellectual Property™);

(iv) all trade secrets, market surveys and marketing know how, specifically including web products sales information and marketing
asset information (“Technology”), owned by any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate to the extent used or held for use primarily in the operation or conduct of the Businesses, and, to the
extent owned by the Sellers Affiliate and not used exclusively in the Businesses, not reasonably objected to by the Sellers Affiliate (the “Transferred Technology”);

) all of the Sellers’ rights under the Madison Avenue Showroom Lease;

(vi) Contracts to which any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate is a party or by which any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate is bound that are
reflected on Schedule 1.02(a)(vi) (the “Transferred Contracts™);




(vii)  all demands, actions, suits and causes of action whether class, individual or otherwise in nature, in law or in equity (collectively,
“Actions”), to the extent relating to any Transferred Asset or any Assumed Liability (as defined in Section 1.04(a)), other than any such Actions arising under an insurance policy,
that any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate, in any capacity, ever had, now has or may or shall have in the future, whether known or unknown, relating in any way to (x) the Businesses’
purchase or procurement of any good, service or product or (y) any Seller’s or the Sellers Affiliate’s purchase or procurement of any good, service or product for, or on behalf of,
the Businesses, in either case, at any time up until the Closing, along with any and all recoveries by settlement, judgment or otherwise in connection with any such Actions;

(viii) all raw materials, work-in-process, supplies, parts, tools, molds and dies, and all other inventories, including packaging
manufactured specifically for Sellers Inventory, owned by each Seller, whether held directly by any Seller in a location controlled by such Seller, or held indirectly by any Seller
and located in a facility controlled by a third party, and used or held for use exclusively in relation to the Sellers Inventory (provided that the foregoing shall not include the items
referred to in Section 1.02(b)(ii) below);

(ix)  all prepaid rent, subject to the provisions of Section 2.04 hereof;

(b)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the Transferred Assets shall not include any assets or rights other than
the assets described or specifically listed in Section 1.02(a), and shall expressly exclude the following assets (collectively, the “Excluded Assets”), which shall not be sold,
transferred, assigned or delivered to the Purchaser:

(i) all cash and cash equivalents of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate, including all accounts receivable and notes receivable (and
similar rights to receive payments) reflected on the books of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate on the Closing Date arising out of the operation or conduct of the Businesses and the
sale of products of the Licensed Businesses, as defined in Section 1.02(b)(xvi) below (“Accounts Receivable™);

(i1) all raw materials, work-in-process, supplies, tools, molds and dies, parts or other inventories (other than the Sellers Inventory) of
the Sellers Affiliate and its affiliates and subsidiaries other than Sellers;

(iii)  all tangible personal property and interests therein, including all machinery, equipment, furniture, furnishings and vehicles, of the
Sellers Affiliate, and its affiliates and subsidiaries, other than Sellers;

(iv)  all Contracts to which any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate is a party or by which any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate is bound that are
set forth in Schedule 1.02(b)(iv);

) all real property owned or leased by any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate, or any of their respective affiliates, other than the Sellers’
rights under the Madison Avenue Showroom Lease;




(vi)  all Actions of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate relating to any Excluded Asset or any Retained Liability, including (A) any such
items arising under insurance policies and (B) all Claims that any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate, in any capacity, ever had, now has or may or shall have in the future, whether
known or unknown, relating in any way to (x) the Businesses’ purchase or procurement of any good, service or product or (y) any Seller’s or the Sellers Affiliate’s purchase or
procurement of any good, service or product for, or on behalf of, the Businesses, in either case, at any time up until the Closing, along with any and all recoveries by settlement,
judgment or otherwise in connection with any such Actions;

(vii)  all shares of capital stock of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate or any affiliate of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate;

(viii)  all assets relating to any employee benefit plan in which any employees of any Seller, the Sellers Affiliate or any of their
respective affiliates participate;

(ix) all records (including accounting records) related to Taxes paid or payable by any Seller, the Sellers Affiliate or any of their
respective affiliates and all financial and Tax records relating to the Businesses that form part of any Seller’s, the Sellers Affiliate’s or any of their respective affiliates’ general
ledger, provided, however, Purchaser shall be granted access to these records to address post-Closing issues and disputes reasonably related thereto;

(x) all books of account, general, financial and accounting records of the Sellers Affiliate, specifically including Indivisible
Confidential Information, notwithstanding the physical or electronic transfer thereof to Purchaser;

(xi)  all bids received from third persons and all records and analyses relating to the Businesses or their potential sale, or the potential
sale of their assets;

(xii) all rights of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate under this Agreement and any other agreements, certificates and instruments relating
to the sale of the Businesses (or any portion thereof) or otherwise delivered in connection with this Agreement;

(xiii) all corporate-level services of the type currently provided to the Businesses by any affiliate of any Seller;

(xiv) any refunds or credits, claims for refunds or credits or rights to receive refunds or credits from any Taxing Authority with respect
to Taxes paid or to be paid by any Seller, the Sellers Affiliate or any of their respective affiliates relating exclusively to the Businesses for any Pre-Closing Tax Period;

(xv)  certain of each Seller’s and all of Sellers Affiliate’s designs, patterns, copyrights, trademarks, trade names, domain names and
other intellectual property set forth in Schedule 1.02(b)(xv) (for the avoidance of doubt (x) non-inclusion of any of such Sellers Affiliate’s property on Schedule 1.02(b)(xv) shall
not cause such property to be deemed a Transferred Asset and (y) all items listed Schedule 1.02(a)(iii) constitute Transferred Assets), certain of which are subject to the execution
and delivery at the Closing by the Sellers Affiliate, as applicable, of a limited, royalty-free license (in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, the “Non-Transferred Asset License™)
to Purchaser of the service marks, trade names, copyrights,




domain names and trademarks set forth in Schedule A of the Non-Transferred Asset License, which is incorporated herein by reference;

(xvi)  The Ralph Lauren License Agreement and the Tyler Florence License Agreement (the “Licensed Businesses”), and the related
records and inventory (with such inventory itemized on Schedule 1.02(b)(xvi).

SECTION 1.03 Consents to Certain Assignments.

(a) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, this Agreement shall not constitute an agreement to assign any material asset or any
claim or right or any benefit arising under or resulting from such asset if an attempted assignment thereof, without the consent of a third party, would constitute a breach, default,
violation or other contravention of the rights of such third party, would be ineffective with respect to any party to an agreement concerning such asset, claim or right, or would in
any way adversely affect the rights of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate or, upon transfer, Purchaser under such asset, claim or right. If any transfer or assignment by a Seller or
the Sellers Affiliate to Purchaser, or any assumption by Purchaser of, any interest in, or liability, obligation or commitment under, any asset, claim or right requires the consent of
a third party, then such transfer or assignment or assumption shall be made subject to such consent being obtained.

(b)  If any such consent is not obtained prior to the Closing, the Closing shall nonetheless take place on the terms set forth herein and, thereafter,
Purchaser shall use its reasonable best efforts to secure such consent as promptly as practicable after the Closing and Sellers shall provide or cause to be provided all
commercially reasonable assistance to Purchaser (not including the payment of any consideration) reasonably requested by Purchaser to secure such consent after the Closing or
cooperate with Purchaser (at Purchaser’s expense) in any lawful and commercially reasonable arrangement reasonably proposed by Purchaser under which (i) Purchaser shall
obtain (without infringing upon the legal rights of such third party or violating any Applicable Law (as defined in Section 3.03)) the economic claims, rights and benefits (net of
the amount of any related Tax costs imposed on Sellers, the Sellers Affiliate or any of their respective affiliates) under the asset, claim or right with respect to which the consent
has not been obtained in accordance with this Agreement and (ii) Purchaser shall assume any related economic burden (including the amount of any related Tax costs imposed on
any Seller, the Sellers Affiliate or any of their respective affiliates) with respect to the asset, claim or right with respect to which the consent has not been obtained in accordance
with this Agreement. If no arrangement by which Purchaser can secure the benefit of any Contract subject to this Section can be reached, then Sellers shall indemnify Purchaser
with regard to its losses and/or damages as a result of such failure to obtain consent, in accordance with the procedures and limitations contained in Article VIII of this
Agreement; provided, however, that this sentence shall not apply with respect to the Madison Avenue Showroom Lease or with respect to the trademark jointly owned by
Miyawo Company Ltd. and Mikasa Licensing Inc.




SECTION 1.04  Assumed Liabilities.

Except as otherwise indicated in section 1.04(a) below, or elsewhere in this Agreement or any of its schedules or exhibits, Purchaser assumes no liabilities or
obligations of the Sellers or Sellers Affiliate of any nature whatsoever.

(a)  Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, Purchaser shall assume, effective as of the Closing, and shall pay, perform and
discharge when due, and indemnify, defend and hold harmless from and after the Closing, each Seller, the Sellers Affiliate and each of their respective affiliates and each of their
respective officers, directors, employees, stockholders, agents and representatives, from and against all of the following obligations, liabilities and commitments arising out of,
relating to or otherwise in respect of the Transferred Assets, the Businesses or the operation or conduct of the Businesses (collectively, the “Assumed Liabilities™):

(i) all accounts payable (including amounts owed to suppliers or with respect to shipping, handling and import fees) as of the Closing
Date arising out of, or otherwise exclusively related to, the Sellers Inventory disclosed on Schedule 1.04(a)(i) or arising in the ordinary course of business following the creation
date of such Schedule (the “Accounts Payable™);

(ii) all liabilities or obligations of the Seller existing as of the Closing Date arising out of, or otherwise exclusively related to, gift
cards issued by the Seller but not yet redeemed by customers of the Seller (the “Gift Card Liability”);

(iii) all open purchase orders and other commitments made by Seller to suppliers for the purchase of inventory which is not reflected
on the Seller’s books as Seller Inventory as disclosed in Schedule 1.04(a)(iii) or arising in the ordinary course of business following the creation date of such Schedule;

(iv) all obligations, liabilities and commitments of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate under the Transferred Contracts disclosed in
Schedule 3.07 to the extent such obligations, liabilities and commitments relate to the period from and after the Closing Date;

W) all obligations liabilities and commitments of the Seller under the Madison Avenue Showroom Lease to the extent such
obligations, liabilities and commitments relate to the period from and after the Closing Date;

(vi)  all Taxes arising out of, relating to or in respect of the Businesses for all Post-Closing Taxable Periods; and

(vii)  all liabilities arising from the Purchaser’s operation of the Businesses from and after the Closing Date, including those arising out
of any suit, action or proceeding but only to the extent the alleged grievance or injury giving rise to such suit, action or proceeding is alleged to have occurred after the Closing
Date.




SECTION 1.05  Retained Liabilities.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, Purchaser shall not assume any Retained Liability, each of which shall be retained and paid, performed and
discharged when due by Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate. The term “Retained Liabilities” means:

(i) all obligations, liabilities and commitments of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate not listed in Section 1.04(a);

(ii) all Taxes arising out of, relating to or in respect of the Businesses imposed upon any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate or any present or
former affiliate of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate for any Pre-Closing Tax Period;

(iii) all obligations, liabilities and commitments of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate to the extent relating to or arising out of the
Excluded Assets; and

(iv)  all obligations, liabilities and commitments of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate arising out of any suit, action or proceeding to the
extent the alleged grievance or injury giving rise to such suit, action or proceeding is alleged to have occurred prior to or on the Closing Date, including any claim that arises out of
or relates to an event that occurred or is alleged to have occurred prior to or on the Closing Date.

SECTION 1.06 Closing Purchase Price.

(a) Not less than one (1) business day prior to the Closing Date, Sellers shall prepare and deliver to Purchaser (i) Seller’s good faith estimate of the
Gross Inventory Amount as of the Closing Date (“Estimated Gross Inventory Amount”), (ii) Seller’s good faith estimate of the Accounts Payable as of the Closing Date
(“Estimated Accounts Payable™), and (iii) its calculation of the Closing Purchase Price.
ARTICLE IIL.
Closing and Post-Closing Purchase Price Adjustment

SECTION 2.01 Closing.

The closing of the Acquisition (the “Closing”) shall take place at the offices of DLA Piper US LLP, 1251 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10020, at
10:00 a.m. on the earlier to occur of June 6, 2008, or as soon as practicable after all the conditions set forth in Article VI have been satisfied (or, to the extent permitted, waived by
the party or parties entitled to the benefit thereof), or at such other place, time and date as may be agreed in writing by Sellers and Purchaser. The date on which the Closing occurs
is referred to in this Agreement as the “Closing Date”. The Closing shall be deemed to be effective as of the close of business on the Closing Date.

SECTION 2.02 Transactions To Be Effected at the Closing.

At the Closing:




(a)  Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Purchaser (including constructively by causing such item to remain in a
location to be assumed by Purchaser, if any, in the custody of a Transferred Employee):

(i) such bills of sale with covenants of warranty, assignments, endorsements, and other good and sufficient instruments and
documents of conveyance and transfer, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Purchaser and its counsel, as shall be reasonably necessary and effective to convey,
transfer and assign to, and vest in, the Purchaser all of the Sellers’ or the Sellers Affiliate’s right, title and interest in and to the Transferred Assets to be sold under this Agreement,
including, without limitation, (A) valid title in and to all of the Transferred Assets (including all of the UPC product codes associated with each Product included therein, and the
EDI codes and mailboxes associated with the Businesses) owned by any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate, as applicable, and (B) all of each Seller’s or the Sellers Affiliate’s, as
applicable, rights under all agreements, contracts, commitments, leases, plans, bids, quotations, proposals, licenses, permits, authorizations, instruments and other documents to
which such Seller or the Sellers Affiliate, as applicable, is a party or by which such Seller or the Sellers Affiliate, as applicable, has rights on the Closing Date and which are to be
sold under this Agreement;

(ii) duly executed assignments of the U.S., Canadian and other foreign Transferred Trademarks, in a form reasonably necessary for
recording in the U.S., Canadian and other foreign Trademark Offices, as appropriate, together with general assignments of all Other Transferred Intellectual Property;

(iii) all agreements, contracts, commitments, leases, plans, bids, quotations, proposals, licenses, permits, authorizations, instruments,
manuals and guidebooks, price books and price lists, customer and subscriber lists, supplier lists, sales records, files, correspondence, and other documents, books, records, papers,
files and data belonging to any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate which are part of the Transferred Assets or relate to the Businesses; and simultaneously with such delivery, all such
steps will be taken as may be required to put the Purchaser in actual possession and operating control of the Transferred Assets;

(iv)  evidence reasonably satisfactory to Purchaser of the release by Bank of America, N. A. of its security interest in the Transferred
Assets represented by that certain financing statement filed in the State of California against American Commercial Incorporated under filling number 057040604874 and of the
additional encumbrances, if any, listed on Schedule 2.02(a)(iv).

) an appropriately executed counterpart of the Transition Services Agreement;

(vi)  an appropriately executed counterpart of the Universal Product Code Transfer Agreement;

(vii) an appropriately executed counterpart of the Distribution Center Services Agreement;
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(viii) an appropriately executed counterpart of the International Agency Agreement;
(ix)  an appropriately executed counterpart of the Corporate Giftware Agency Agreement;
(x)  an appropriately executed counterpart of the Non-Transferred Asset License; and

(xi)  an appropriately executed counterpart of the Transferred Trademark License (items (v) through (xi) hereof referred to collectively
as the “Ancillary Agreements”).

(b) At the Closing, Purchaser shall deliver to the Sellers Affiliate or its designee(s) (i) payment, by wire transfer of immediately available funds to
one or more accounts designated in writing by Sellers (such designation to be made at least three business days prior to the Closing Date), in an amount equal to the Closing
Purchase Price, as calculated and defined in Section 1.06, and the Closing Purchase Price, (ii) appropriately executed counterparts to such bills of sale, assignments and other
instruments of transfer, and appropriately executed assumption agreements and other instruments of assumption providing for the assumption of the Assumed Liabilities, and (iii)
an appropriately executed counterpart of each of the Ancillary Agreements.

(c) The Deferred Purchase Price shall be paid as follows:

(i) On December 15, 2008, Purchaser shall pay to the Sellers Affiliate or its designee(s), by wire transfer of immediately available
funds to one or more accounts designated in writing by the Sellers Affiliate (such designation to be made at least three business days prior to December 31, 2008), a non-refundable
payment of that amount equal to (x) four million eight hundred thousand dollars ($4,800,000) less (y) the sum of (A) amounts actually paid by the Purchaser on account of Gift
Card Liability between the Closing Date and November 30, 2008 (so long as and to the extent that the Purchaser provides the Sellers Affiliate with a reasonably detailed statement,
along with supporting documentation, of all such amounts on December 31, 2008) and (B) all Charge-Back Amounts payable by the Sellers pursuant to Section 2.05 hereof which
have not been paid or otherwise satisfied by the Sellers as of November 30, 2008. On the first anniversary of the Closing Date, Purchaser shall pay to the Sellers Affiliates or its
designee(s), by wire transfer of immediately available funds to one or more accounts designated in writing by the Sellers Affiliate (such designation to be made at least three
business days prior to the first anniversary of the Closing Date), a non-refundable payment of that amount equal to (x) $200,000 less (y) the sum of (A) any amounts payable by the
Sellers pursuant to Section 8.01(i) arising from or related to a breach by any of the Sellers or the Sellers Affiliate of the representation set forth in Section 3.06 hereof in respect to
Transferred Intellectual Property actually employed in the Business on the Closing Date (subject to the provisions of Article VIII hereof); (B) amounts actually paid by the
Purchaser on account of Gift Card Liability between November 30, 2008 and May 31, 2009 (so long as and to the extent that the Purchaser provides the Sellers Affiliate with a
reasonably detailed statement, along with supporting documentation, of all such amounts on the first anniversary of the Closing Date) and




(C) all Charge-Back Amounts payable by the Sellers pursuant to Section 2.05 hereof which have not been paid or otherwise satisfied by the Sellers as of May 31, 2009 (the excess
of the amounts referred to in clauses (B) and (C) not satisfied out of said $200,000 (after application of the provisions of clause (A)), being referred to herein as the “Unreimbursed
Deduction Amount”).

(i)  On February 15t 2010, 2011 and 2012, Purchaser shall deliver to the Sellers Affiliate a statement (which shall have been reviewed
by Purchaser’s auditors) (a “Deferred Purchase Price Statement™) setting forth in reasonable detail (w) that amount equal to five (5) % of the net sales of the Post Closing Business
through December 31 of the immediately preceding calendar year (the “5% of Net Sales Amount”), (x) all amounts actually paid by the Purchaser on account of Gift Card Liability
between the Closing Date and December 31 of the immediately preceding calendar year (the “Paid Gift Card Liability”), (y) with respect to the Deferred Purchase Price Statement
to be delivered on February 15, 2010, all Charge-Back Amounts payable by the Sellers pursuant to Section 2.05 hereof which have not been paid or otherwise satisfied by the
Sellers as of the first anniversary of the Closing Date (the “Unpaid Charge-Back Amount”) and (z) , in the case of the Deferred Purchase Price Statement to be delivered on
February 15, 2010, any Unreimbursed Deduction Amount. With respect to each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011, the “Deferred Purchase Price Amount”
shall be that amount equal to the 5% Net Sales Amount for that year less the sum of (A) the Paid Gift Card Liability for that year, (B) with respect to the period ending December
31, 2009, the Unpaid Charge-Back Amounts and (C) any Unreimbursed Deduction Amount. The “Aggregate Deferred Purchase Price Amount” shall be the sum of Deferred
Purchase Price Amounts through the period in question. If the Aggregate Deferred Purchase Price Amount through the period in question is greater than $5,000,000 (without taking
into account any amounts deducted therefrom as provided in clause (i) of Section 2.02(c)), Purchaser shall pay to the Sellers Affiliate or its designee(s), within seven (7) business
days of the delivery of the Deferred Purchase Price Statement for the period in question to Sellers Affiliate, by wire transfer of immediately available funds to one or more accounts
designated in writing by Sellers Affiliate (such designation to be made at least three business days prior to such seven (7) business day), that amount equal to (x) the Aggregate
Deferred Purchase Price Amount through the period in question minus (y) $5,000,000, minus (z) such amounts, if any, as the Purchaser shall have previously paid to the Sellers
Affiliate or its designee(s) pursuant to this clause (ii) of this Section 2.02(c).

(iii) Within ninety (90) days following delivery of each Deferred Purchase Price Statement by Purchaser to the Sellers Affiliate
pursuant to clause (ii) above, the Sellers Affiliate shall have the right, during regular business hours, to itself and/or have a certified public accounting firm inspect and audit the
relevant books and records of Purchaser for the purpose of ascertaining or confirming the accuracy of such Deferred Purchase Price Statement; provided, that the Sellers Affiliate
may only exercise such right once during each such ninety (90) day period. The cost of each such inspection shall be borne by the Sellers Affiliate unless the inspection establishes
that the Purchaser has underpaid the amount payable pursuant to Sections 2.02(c)(i) or (ii), as the case may be, by an amount in excess of five percent (5%) of the total amount due
for the given period, whereupon the cost of the inspection shall be borne by the Purchaser.
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Purchase Price Adjustment.

(d)  Within thirty (30) days following the Closing Date, Purchaser shall prepare and deliver to Sellers (i) Purchaser’s final determination of Gross
Inventory Amount as of the close of business on the Closing Date (“Final Gross Inventory Amount”), (ii) Purchaser’s final determination of the Accounts Payable as of the close
of business on the Closing Date (“Final Accounts Payable”) and (iii) Purchaser’s calculation of the Adjusted Closing Purchase Price. The “Adjusted Closing Purchase Price”
shall be that amount equal to fifty-four percent (54%) of the difference between (x) Final Gross Inventory Amount and (y) the Final Accounts Payable.

(e) In the event that, within fifteen (15) days following receipt by Sellers of information called for by Section 2.03(a), Sellers do not disagree with
the Adjusted Closing Purchase Price as determined by the Purchaser as provided in Section 2.03(a), the Closing Cash Payment shall be increased by the amount by which the
Closing Purchase Price is less than Adjusted Closing Purchase Price, or the Closing Cash Payment shall be decreased by the amount by which the Closing Purchase Price is more
than the Adjusted Closing Purchase Price (the Closing Cash Payment as so increased or decreased being hereinafter called the “Final Closing Cash Payment”). Settlement of the
difference between the Closing Cash Payment and the Final Closing Cash Payment shall be made by the Parties within five (5) business days of the determination of the Final
Closing Cash Payment by wire in immediately available funds in US dollars

) In the event that Sellers disagree with the Adjusted Closing Purchase Price as determined by the Purchaser as provided in Section 2.03(a),
Sellers shall advise Purchaser in writing within fifteen (15) days after the delivery by Purchaser to Sellers of the statement setting forth Purchaser’s calculation of the Adjusted
Closing Purchase Price as provided in Section 2.03(a), specifying the nature of all such disagreements, the reason therefore and Sellers’ calculation of the Adjusted Closing
Purchase Price. If Purchaser and Sellers are unable to resolve all such disagreements within twenty (20) days after Sellers shall have advised Purchaser of such disagreements,
Purchaser and Sellers shall then select a mutually acceptable firm of certified public accountants (the “Independent Accountants™) to resolve the disagreements and to determine
the Adjusted Closing Purchase Price. The Independent Accountants shall deliver their determination of the Adjusted Closing Purchase Price (the “Revised Adjusted Closing
Purchase Price”) to Purchaser and Sellers as soon as practicable and such determination shall be final and binding upon Purchaser and Sellers. In such event, the Closing Cash
Payment shall be increased by the amount by which the Closing Purchase Price is less than the Revised Adjusted Closing Purchase Price, or the Closing Cash Payment shall be
decreased by the amount by which the Closing Purchase Price is more than the Revised Adjusted Closing Purchase Price (the Closing Cash Payment as so increased or decreased
being hereinafter called the “Revised Final Closing Purchase Price”). Settlement of the difference between the Closing Purchase Price and the Revised Final Closing Purchase
Price shall be made by the Parties within five (5) business days of the determination of the Revised Final Closing Purchase Price as provided in this Section 2.03(d) by wire in
immediately available funds in US dollars.
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SECTION 2.03  Madison Avenue Showroom Lease

(a)  Purchaser and Sellers agree that all rent, taxes, water, telephone, electricity and other utilities arising with respect to the occupancy and use of
the premises which is the subject of the Madison Avenue Showroom Lease shall be prorated as of the Closing Date, with the Sellers liable therefor to the extent such items relate
to any period prior to the Closing Date, and Purchaser liable therefor to the extent such items relate to any period from and after the Closing Date.

(b)  Not more than thirty (30) days following the Closing Date, Purchaser shall use best efforts to cause (i) Mikasa’s letter of credit issued with
respect to the Madison Avenue Showroom Lease to be replaced with a letter of credit of the Purchaser (or such other security satisfactory to the landlord under such lease) and
(ii) Mikasa’s letter of credit to be released by the landlord.

SECTION 2.04 Customer Charge-Backs.

(a) The parties agree that any deductions claimed by customers, including, but not limited to, deductions for charge-backs, mark-downs, allowances
and returns through the first anniversary of the Closing Date (each a “Charge-Back”) (i) which relate to Products delivered to customers prior to the Closing Date, shall be the
responsibility of, and payable by, Sellers (each a “Seller Charge-Back™) and (ii) which relate to Products delivered to customers from and after the Closing Date, shall be the
responsibility of, and payable by, Purchaser (each a “Purchaser Charge-Back™). Following the first anniversary of the Closing Date, all Charge-Backs shall be the responsibility
of Purchaser.

(b) To the extent that Purchaser becomes aware of any Seller Charge-Back, Purchaser shall promptly advise Sellers of the same, after which Sellers
shall be solely responsible for the payment or other resolution of such Seller Charge-Back. To the extent that any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate becomes aware of any Purchaser
Charge-Back, Sellers or the Sellers Affiliate, as the case may be, shall promptly advise Purchaser of the same, after which Purchaser shall be solely responsible for the payment
or other resolution of such Purchaser Charge-Back. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to any Charge-Back which constitutes both a Seller Charge-Back and a Purchaser
Charge-Back, Purchaser may, subject to Section 2.05(c) below (i) pay (or provide credit to) the customer for the entire Charge-Back and (ii) deduct from amounts payable by
Purchaser to the Sellers Affiliate pursuant to Section 2.02(c) the amount of any such payment or credit related to any such Seller Charge-Back, in each case, to the extent that
Purchaser has provided Seller with not less than 30 days written notice thereof (any such amount being referred to herein as a “Charge-Back Amount”).

(c) If a party disagrees with the other party with respect to (i) the classification of any particular Charge-Back as a Seller Charge-Back or a
Purchaser Charge-Back, as the case may be, (ii) the extent to which any particular Charge-Back relates (or may relate) to Products delivered to customers both prior to and on or
after the Closing Date or (iii) the calculation of any Charge-Back Amount, that party shall notify the other in writing, after which Purchaser and the Seller shall cooperate with
one another and, in good faith, seek to determine (x) the appropriate classification of such Charge-Back as a Seller Charge-Back or a
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Purchaser Charge-Back, (y) what portion of such Charge-Back constitutes a Seller Charge-Back and what portion of such Charge-Back constitutes a Purchaser Charge-Back and (z)
the amount of such Charge-Back Amount. To the extent that after five (5) business days, the parties are unable to resolve any disagreement regarding the classification or
apportionment of a Charge-Back or the amount of a Charge-Back Amount, as the case may be, the CEO of the Purchaser and a senior manager of the Sellers Affiliate (designated
by the Sellers Affiliate) shall consult and, in good faith, seek to resolve such disagreement. In the event that any such disagreement is not resolved by consultation in accordance
with the immediately preceding sentence within five (5) business days, either party may submit such disagreement for resolution to an arbitrator, who may but shall not be required
to be, a certified public accountant, mutually acceptable to the Purchaser and Sellers (the “Arbitrator”), whose determination shall be final and binding on the parties. The fees and
expenses of the Arbitrator shall be borne by the Seller and Purchaser in reverse proportion as they may prevail on matters resolved by the Arbitrator, which proportionate allocation
shall be determined by the Arbitrator at the time its determination regarding the dispute is rendered.

(d)  Purchaser agrees to (i) use its reasonable commercial efforts to minimize all Seller Charge-Backs and (ii) not take any actions which could
reasonably be expected to increase, promote or encourage Seller Charge-Backs.

ARTICLE IIL
Representations and Warranties of Sellers

Except as set forth in Sellers’ disclosure schedule dated as of the date hereof and delivered herewith to Purchaser (the “Disclosure Schedule”) which identifies the
section and subsection to which each disclosure therein relates (provided, however, that Sellers will be deemed to have adequately disclosed with respect to any section or
subsection any matters that are clearly described elsewhere in such document if the applicability of such disclosure to such non-referenced sections or subsections is clearly
apparent to the Purchaser), and whether or not the Disclosure Schedule is referred to in a specific section or subsection, Sellers represent and warrant to the Purchaser as follows (it
is specifically understood that the following representations and warranties are made only to the extent that they relate to, or may have an effect on, the Businesses, the Transferred
Assets or the Assumed Liabilities, whether so expressed or not):

SECTION 3.01 Organization and Standing.

Each of Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of their respective jurisdictions of incorporation, has all requisite
corporate power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on the Businesses as now being conducted, and is duly qualified and in good standing to do
business in each jurisdiction in which a failure to be so qualified, individually or in the aggregate, would have a Businesses Material Adverse Effect.

-13 -




Each of Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate has full corporate power and authority to execute and perform this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements to which it is, or
is specified to be, a party and to consummate the transactions contemplated to be consummated by it by this Agreement and such Ancillary Agreements. Each of Sellers and the
Sellers Affiliate has duly executed and delivered this Agreement and prior to the Closing will have duly executed and delivered each Ancillary Agreement to which it is, or is
specified to be, a party, and this Agreement constitutes, and each Ancillary Agreement to which it is, or is specified to be, a party will after the Closing constitute, its legal, valid
and binding obligation, enforceable against it in accordance with the terms of such agreement, subject, as to enforcement, to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium,
reorganization or similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and to general equitable principles.

SECTION 3.02 No Conflicts or Violations; No Consents or Approvals Required.

The execution and delivery by each of Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate of this Agreement do not, and the execution and delivery by each of Sellers and the Sellers
Affiliate of each Ancillary Agreement to which it is, or is specified to be, a party will not, and the consummation by each of Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate of the transactions
contemplated to be consummated by it by this Agreement and by each Ancillary Agreement will not, conflict with, or result in any breach of or constitute a default under, or result
in the creation of any Lien (as defined in Section 3.05) (other than Permitted Liens (as defined in Section 3.05) or Liens caused by Purchaser) upon any of the Transferred Assets
under, any provision of (i) in the case of any Seller, its Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws and, in the case of the Sellers Affiliate, its comparable organizational documents, (ii)
except as set forth in Schedule 3.03, any Contract to which any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate is a party or by which any of the Transferred Assets is bound or (iii) any judgment,
order, writ, injunction, award or decree of any court, arbitrator or governmental or regulatory official, body or authority (“Judgment”) or statute, law, ordinance, rule or regulation
(“Applicable Law”) applicable to any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate or any of the Transferred Assets, other than, in the case of clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) above, any such item that
would not reasonably be expected to have a Businesses Material Adverse Effect. No consent, approval or authorization (“Consent”) of, or registration, declaration or filing with,
any Federal, state, local or foreign court of competent jurisdiction, governmental agency, authority, instrumentality or regulatory body (a “Governmental Entity”), is required to be
obtained or made by or with respect to any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, any Ancillary Agreement or
the consummation of the Acquisition, other than (A) those that may be required solely by reason of Purchaser’s (as opposed to any other third party’s) participation in the
Acquisition and the other transactions contemplated hereby and by the Ancillary Agreements, and (B) those the failure of which to obtain or make would not reasonably be
expected to have a Businesses Material Adverse Effect. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by any Seller and the Sellers Affiliate will not contravene or
violate (a) any law, rule or regulation to which any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate is subject, (b) any Judgment which is applicable to any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate , or (c) the
certificate of incorporation or Bylaws of any Seller or, in the case of the Sellers Affiliate, its comparable organizational documents or any securities issued by any Seller or the
Sellers Affiliate; nor will such execution, delivery or performance violate, be in conflict with or result in the breach (with
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or without the giving of notice or lapse of time, or both) of any term, condition or provision of, or require the consent of any other party to, any indenture, agreement, contract,
commitment, lease, plan, license, permit, authorization or other instrument, document or understanding, oral or written, to which either any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate is a party,
by which any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate may have rights or by which any of the assets or properties of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate may be bound or affected, or give any
party with rights thereunder the right to terminate, modify, accelerate or otherwise change the existing rights or obligations of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate thereunder. No
authorization, approval or consent, and no registration or filing with, any governmental or regulatory official, body or authority is required in connection with the execution,
delivery and performance of this Agreement by any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate.

SECTION 3.03 Financial Information.

Schedule 3.04 sets forth:

(i) the special-purpose Statement of Transferred Assets and Assumed Liabilities as of December 31, 2007 (assuming for purposes of
such statement that the Closing Date is December 31, 2007) (the “December 31, 2007 Statement of Assets and Liabilities”),

(ii) the special-purpose Statement of Transferred Assets and Assumed Liabilities as of April 30, 2008 (assuming for purposes of such
statement that the Closing Date is April 30, 2008) (the “April 30, 2008 Statement of Assets and Liabilities” and, together with the December 31, 2007 Statement of
Assets and Liabilities, the “Statements of Assets and Liabilities”), and

(iii) the special-purpose Statement of Sales Revenues and Cost of Goods Sold in respect of the operation of the Businesses for the 12
months ended December 31, 2007 (the “December 31, 2007 Statement of Sales and Costs”™).

(iv) the special-purpose Statement of Sales Revenues and Cost of Goods Sold in respect of the operation of the Businesses for the 4
months ended April 30, 2008 (the “April 30, 2008 Statement of Sales and Costs” and, together with the December 31, 2007 Statement of Sales and Costs, the
“Statements of Sales and Costs”). The Statements of Assets and Liabilities and the Statements of Sales and Costs are herein referred to collectively as the “Financial
Statements”.

The Statements of Assets and Liabilities present a fair estimate in all material respects of the Transferred Assets and Assumed Liabilities of the Businesses based upon review of
each Seller’s and the Sellers Affiliate’s unaudited financial statements as of December 31, 2007 and April 30, 2008, respectively, and the Statements of Sales and Costs have been
prepared in accordance with GAAP, except that such unaudited Statements of Sales and Costs do not contain the footnotes required by GAAP and are subject to normal year-end
audit adjustments, and the assumptions used in the preparation thereof are reasonable and any adjustments used therein are appropriate to give effect to the transactions or
circumstances referred to therein and all are in conformity with GAAP. To the knowledge of Sellers, neither any Seller nor the Sellers Affiliate has any
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liability or obligation (whether accrued, absolute, contingent, unliquidated or otherwise, whether due or to become due) except those liabilities and obligations set forth on the
Financial Statements and not heretofore paid or discharged. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “liabilities” shall include, without limitation, any known direct or indirect
indebtedness, guaranty, endorsement, claim, loss, damage, deficiency, cost, expense, obligation or responsibility, fixed or unfixed, choate or inchoate, liquidated or unliquidated,
secured or unsecured which would be recordable on the books and records of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate in accordance with GAAP.

SECTION 3.04 Good and Valid Title.

Sellers or the Sellers Affiliate has, or as of the Closing Date will have, good and valid title to all Transferred Assets, other than those set forth in Schedule 3.05, in
each case free and clear of all mortgages, liens, charges, claims, pledges, security interests, conditional sales contracts or other encumbrances of any kind whatsoever (collectively,
“Liens”), except (i) such Liens as are set forth in Schedule 3.05, (ii) mechanics’, carriers’, workmen’s, repairmen’s or other like Liens arising or incurred in the ordinary course of
business, (iii) Liens arising under original purchase price conditional sales Contracts and equipment leases listed on Schedule 3.07, and (iv) Liens for Taxes and other governmental
charges that are not due and payable (the Liens described in clauses (i) through (iv) above are referred to collectively as “Permitted Liens”). Notwithstanding the foregoing, this
Section 3.05 does not relate to Transferred Intellectual Property, such items being the subject of Section 3.06.

SECTION 3.05 Intellectual Property.

(a) With respect to the Transferred Trademarks, Schedule 1.02(a)(ii) sets forth a list that identifies the jurisdictions where such Transferred
Trademarks are registered or where applications have been filed, and all registration and application numbers, and any such registrations that have expired. Sellers or the Sellers
Affiliate, as applicable, owns, free and clear of all Liens, all right, title and interest in and to, or has a valid right to use, sell, license and sublicense, without any restriction, as
applicable, the Transferred Trademarks, provided, however, that for those Transferred Trademarks listed on Schedule 1.02(a)(ii) as expired, such entity may hold only common
law rights to such marks. Additionally, one of the Seller or the Sellers Affiliate, as applicable, own, free and clear of all Liens, all right, title and interest in and to, or has a valid
right to use, sell, license and sublicense, as applicable, the Other Transferred Intellectual Property identified on Schedule 3.06(a) (the “Other Sellers Intellectual Property”).
Ownership of the Transferred Intellectual Property together with the Other Sellers Intellectual Property is sufficient and, immediately following the Closing, will be sufficient to
allow the Purchaser to enjoy the intellectual property rights used by Sellers in the operation of the Businesses in the jurisdictions in which such intellectual property is applicable,
and to conduct the Businesses in substantially the same manner in which the Sellers conducted the Businesses immediately prior to the Closing.

(b) In the three (3) years preceding the date of this Agreement, neither any Seller nor any of Sellers’ affiliates (which term as used in this
Agreement is inclusive of “the Sellers Affiliate”) has received written notice contesting the validity, use, ownership or enforceability of any of the Transferred Intellectual
Property that is, or could be, expected to be
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material to the operation of the Businesses of Sellers. There exists no pending or, to knowledge of Sellers, threatened litigation, action, lawsuit or claim, including without
limitation, any claim for infringement or misappropriation, of other claims material or adverse to the ownership of enforceability rights of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate with
respect to the Transferred Intellectual Property.

(c)  Except as set forth on Schedule (A) to the Non-Transferred Asset License Agreement, there is no license or permit in effect allowing any third
party to use any of the Transferred Intellectual Property, and following the Closing, neither any Seller nor any of Sellers’s affiliates shall use, license or permit any third party to
use any of the Transferred Intellectual Property.

(d)  Except as set forth in Schedule 3.06, one of the Sellers or the Sellers Affiliate is the owner of the Transferred Trademarks and no license fee of
any kind in respect of the Transferred Trademarks is required for the use by any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate of the Transferred Trademarks in those jurisdictions where the
Transferred Trademarks are currently used.

(e) Except as set forth in Schedule 3.06(d), neither any Seller nor the Sellers Affiliate has granted any license of any kind relating to any
Transferred Technology, except nonexclusive licenses to end-users in the ordinary course of business. Neither any Seller nor the Sellers Affiliate is bound by or a party to any
option, license or other Contract relating to any intellectual property of any other person for the use of such intellectual property in the conduct of the Businesses, except (i) as set
forth in Schedule 3.06(d), (ii) for nonexclusive licenses to end-users of machinery and equipment in the ordinary course of business and (iii) for so-called “shrink-wrap” and
other non-customized license agreements relating to computer software licensed to one of the Sellers or the Sellers Affiliate in the ordinary course of business.

SECTION 3.06 Contracts.

(a)  Except as set forth in Schedule 3.07, Contracts relating to Excluded Assets and Contracts relating to the manufacture by the Sellers Affiliate of
the Products, neither any Seller nor the Sellers Affiliate is a party to or bound by any Contract that is used and held for use exclusively in, or that arises exclusively out of, the
operation or conduct of the Businesses (other than this Agreement, the Ancillary Agreements, and Transferred Contracts entered into after the date of this Agreement in the
ordinary course of business) and that is:

(i) a covenant not to compete that limits the conduct of the Businesses as currently conducted;

(ii) an advertising Contract, in any such case which has an aggregate future liability to any person (other than one of the Sellers or the
Sellers Affiliate) in excess of US $25,000 (twenty-five thousand US dollars) and is not terminable by any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate by notice of not more than 90 days for a cost
of less than US $10,000 (ten thousand US dollars); or
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(iii)  any other Contract that has an aggregate future liability to any person in excess of $25,000 and is not terminable by any Seller or
the Sellers Affiliate by notice of not more than 90 days for a cost of less than US $10,000 (ten thousand US dollars).

(b) Except as set forth in Schedule 3.07, or to the extent not reasonably expected to have a Businesses Material Adverse Effect, each of the
Transferred Contracts and other commitments, instruments, documents and undertakings listed on any Schedule of this Agreement or to be assigned to Purchaser is (a) to the best
of knowledge of the Sellers, valid and (b) enforceable in accordance with its terms, subject to general principles of equity and applicable bankruptcy, insolvency and similar laws
affecting creditors’ rights generally. With respect to the Transferred Contracts and other commitments, instruments, documents, and undertakings listed on any Schedule of the
Agreement to be assigned to Purchaser, (x) the parties thereto are in compliance with the provisions thereof; (y) no party is in default in the performance, observance or
fulfillment of any material obligation, covenant or condition contained therein; and (z) no event has occurred which with or without the giving of notice or lapse of time, or both,
would constitute a default thereunder; furthermore, no such Transferred Contract, commitment, instrument, document or undertaking, in the reasonable opinion of Sellers and the
Sellers Affiliate, contains any contractual requirement with which there is a reasonable likelihood any party thereto will be unable to comply. The failure of any Seller or the
Sellers Affiliate to obtain the consent or approval of any party to any agreement, contract, commitment, lease or other instrument, document or undertaking listed on the
Schedules of this Agreement or to be assigned to Purchaser, prior to the execution of this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, will not result
in a default, termination, breach, renegotiation or acceleration of any thereof.

(c) Except as set forth in Schedule 3.07, no Transferred Contract requires the consent of any party thereto, or any third party beneficiary, in order to
be assigned to Purchaser in accordance with the terms hereof.

SECTION 3.07  Proceedings.

Schedule 3.08 sets forth a list as of the date of this Agreement of each pending proceeding against any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate (as to which a complaint has been
served on any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate), which relates to the Businesses and pursuant to which a party seeks (a) more than $50,000 from Sellers or the Sellers Affiliate or (b)
injunctive relief prohibiting the consummation of the Acquisition. Except as set forth in Schedule 3.08, neither any Seller nor the Sellers Affiliate is a party or subject to or in
default under any unsatisfied Judgment applicable to the conduct of the Businesses. This Section 3.08 does not relate to Transferred Intellectual Property matters, such items being
the subject of Section 3.06.

SECTION 3.08 Absence of Changes or Events.

Except as set forth in Schedule 3.09 or Schedule 5.01, since the date of the December 31, 2007 Statement of Assets and Liabilities there has not been a Businesses
Material Adverse Effect. Purchaser acknowledges that there may be disruption to the operation of the Businesses as a result of the announcement by Sellers of its intention to sell
the Businesses (and there may be further disruption to the Businesses as a result of the execution of this Agreement (including
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due to the identity of Purchaser) and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby), and Purchaser agrees that any such disruptions and any disruptions occasioned by
the liquidation of Inventory agreed by the Parties in the Transferred Trademark License, do not and shall not constitute a breach of this Section 3.09. Except as set forth in Schedule
3.09, neither any Seller nor the Sellers Affiliate has, with respect to the Businesses:

(a) sold, assigned or transferred any of its assets or properties, other than in the ordinary course of its business;

(b) created, incurred, assumed or guaranteed any indebtedness for money borrowed, or mortgaged, pledged or subjected to any Lien against any of
its assets or properties;

(c)  made or suffered any amendment or termination of any agreement, contract, commitment, lease or plan to which it is a party or by which it is
bound, or canceled, modified or waived any debt or claim held by it, or waived any right or rights of substantial value;

(d) suffered any damage, destruction or loss, whether or not covered by insurance, materially and adversely affecting its business, operations,
assets, properties, prospects or condition (financial or otherwise);

(e) made any capital expenditure or capital addition or betterment except such as may be involved in the ordinary repair, maintenance and
replacement of its assets; or

(f)  entered into any transaction, other than in the ordinary course of business consistent with past practice.
SECTION 3.09 Compliance with Applicable Laws.

Each Seller and the Sellers Affiliate has complied with each and is not in violation of any law, statute, rule, or regulation to which it or its business, operations, assets
or properties is subject, including the Safe Drinking and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986 of the State of California (“Proposition 65”), and has not failed to obtain or adhere to the
requirements of any license, permit or authorization necessary to the ownership of its assets and properties, other than its intellectual property, or to the conduct of the Businesses.
This Section 3.10 does not relate to Tax matters.

SECTION 3.10  Accounts Payable.
Schedule 3.11 sets forth a detailed list of all transferred Accounts Payable as of the date hereof.
SECTION 3.11 Customers and Suppliers.
Other than as set forth on Schedule 3.12 hereto, to the knowledge of Sellers (a) no wholesale customer (or group of wholesale customers under common ownership or

control) has stopped or intends to stop, or has reduced or intends to reduce to a level that would constitute a
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Businesses Material Adverse Effect, purchasing the products or services of the Businesses, and (b) no supplier (or group of suppliers under common ownership or control) that
accounted for fifteen percent (15%) or more of the aggregate supplies purchased by the Businesses during the past 18 months has stopped or intends to stop supplying products or
services to the Businesses.

SECTION 3.12  Insurance.

The assets, properties and business relating to the Businesses of Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate are insured under various policies of general liability, products
liability and other forms of insurance, as set forth on Schedule 3.13. Neither any Seller nor the Sellers Affiliate has failed to give any notice or present any claim under any such
policy in a timely fashion or in the manner or detail required by the policy other than as would not be expected to give rise to a Businesses Material Adverse Effect, and all existing
notices and claims are listed on Schedule 3.13 (a). No notice of cancellation or non-renewal with respect to, or disallowance of any claim under, any such policy has been received
by any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate. There are no outstanding unpaid premiums or claims, and there are no provisions for retroactive or retrospective premium adjustments.
Schedule 3.13(b) also contains a true and complete description of all outstanding bonds and other surety arrangements issued or entered into in connection with the Businesses or
the operations of any Seller.

SECTION 3.13 Inventory and Tangible Assets.

The Sellers Inventory to be transferred to Purchaser pursuant hereto is (i) in transit to one of the Sellers, or located entirely within one of the Sellers’ distribution
facility, and (ii) shall be made available for Purchaser to access from and after the Closing Date, wherever located at all reasonable times and under all reasonable circumstances.

SECTION 3.14  Books of Account.

The books of account of each Seller reflect all of its items of income and expense, and all of its assets, liabilities and accruals required to be reflected therein in
accordance with GAAP.

SECTION 3.15  No Defective or Unsafe Products.

Except as set forth on Schedule 3.16, (i) there are no statements, citations or decisions by any Governmental Entity stating or implying that any product forming part
of the Sellers Inventory or employing the Transferred Intellectual Property and sold by any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate as part of the Businesses (such products, the “Transferred
Product Class”) is defective or unsafe or fails to meet any standards promulgated by any Governmental Entity; (ii) there have been no recalls ordered by any Governmental Entity
with respect to any Transferred Product Class product or any voluntary recall of any Transferred Product Class product by any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate; and (iii) there is no (A)
fact relating to any Transferred Product Class product of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate that may impose upon any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate a duty to recall any such product
or a duty to warn customers of a defect in any such product, (B) design, manufacturing or other defect of any kind in any Transferred Product Class product, (C) material liability
for warranty claims, returns or servicing with respect to any Transferred Product Class product of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate not fully reflected in the April 30, 2008
Statement of Assets and Liabilities or (D) Proposition 65 claim for lead-based
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products with respect to any Transferred Product Class product of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate.

SECTION 3.16 Product Warranties. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.17, since January 1, 2005, neither any Seller nor the Sellers Affiliate has made any
express warranty with respect to the Businesses or any of the products sold in the Businesses. Except as set forth on Schedule 3.17, since January 1, 2005, neither any Seller nor the
Sellers Affiliate has received any notice of any claim based on any such warranty, except for product returns through any Seller’s or Sellers Affiliate’s customer service
departments in the ordinary course of business.

ARTICLE IV.
Representations and Warranties of Purchaser
Purchaser hereby represents and warrants to the Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate as follows:

SECTION 4.01 Organization and Standing.

Purchaser is validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is organized and has full corporate power and authority and possesses
all governmental franchises, licenses, permits, authorizations and approvals necessary to enable it to own, lease or otherwise hold its properties and assets and to carry on its
business as presently conducted, other than such franchises, licenses, permits, authorizations and approvals the lack of which would not reasonably be expected to have a material
adverse effect on the ability of Purchaser to consummate the Acquisition (a “Purchaser Material Adverse Effect”).

SECTION 4.02 Authority; Execution and Delivery; Enforceability.

Purchaser has full corporate power and authority to execute this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements to which it is, or is specified to be, a party and to
consummate the Acquisition and the other transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. Purchaser has duly executed and delivered this Agreement and prior to the Closing will
have duly executed and delivered each Ancillary Agreement to which it is, or is specified to be, a party, and this Agreement constitutes, and each Ancillary Agreement to which it
is, or is specified to be, a party will after the Closing constitute, its legal, valid and binding obligation, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms subject, as to enforcement,
to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, reorganization or similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and to general equitable principles.

SECTION 4.03 No Conflicts or Violations; No Consents or Approvals Required.

The execution and delivery by Purchaser of this Agreement do not, the execution and delivery by Purchaser of each Ancillary Agreement to which it is, or is specified
to be, a party will not, and the consummation of the Acquisition and the other transactions contemplated hereby and thereby will not conflict with, or result in any breach of or
constitute a default under, or result in the creation of any Lien upon any of the properties or assets of Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries under, any provision of (i) the
organizational documents of Purchaser or any of its
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subsidiaries, (ii) any Contract to which Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries is a party or by which any of their respective properties or assets is bound or (iii) any Judgment or
Applicable Law applicable to Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries or their respective properties or assets, other than, in the case of clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) above, any such items that
would not reasonably be expected to have a Purchaser Material Adverse Effect. No Consent of, or registration, declaration or filing with, any Governmental Entity is required to be
obtained or made by or with respect to Purchaser or any of its affiliates in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement or the consummation of the
Acquisition other than those that may be required solely by reason of Sellers’ (as opposed to any third party’s) participation in the Acquisition and the other transactions
contemplated hereby and by the Ancillary Agreements and those the failure of which to obtain or make would not reasonably be expected to have a Purchaser Material Adverse
Effect.

SECTION 4.04 Proceedings.
There are not any(a) outstanding Judgments against Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries, (b) proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of Purchaser, threatened against
Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries or (c) investigations by any Governmental Entity that are pending or threatened against Purchaser or any of its subsidiaries that, in any such
case, would reasonably be expected to have a Purchaser Material Adverse Effect.
SECTION 4.05 Availability of Funds.
Purchaser has cash or lines of credit available sufficient to enable it to consummate the Acquisition and the other transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

SECTION 4.06 No Knowledge of Misrepresentations or Omissions.

Purchaser does not have any knowledge that any of the representations and warranties of Sellers made in this Agreement are not true and correct in all material
respects. Purchaser does not have any knowledge of any material errors in, or material omissions from, any Disclosure Schedule.

ARTICLE V.
Covenants and Mutual Representations
SECTION 5.01 Covenants Relating to Conduct of the Businesses.
(a) Except for matters (x) set forth in Schedule 5.01, (y) expressly agreed to by Purchaser or (z) otherwise contemplated by the terms of this
Agreement, from the date of this Agreement to the Closing Date, Sellers and Sellers Affiliate shall, and Sellers Affiliate shall cause Sellers to, conduct the Businesses in all
material respects in the ordinary course in a manner substantially consistent with past practice and, to the extent consistent therewith, use commercially reasonable efforts to

preserve the material business relationships with customers, suppliers, distributors and others with whom any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate deals with in connection with the
conduct of the Businesses in the ordinary course of business. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that except as set forth in
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the Transition Services Agreement, relationships with Sellers and certain of their affiliates providing services to the Businesses will terminate as of the Closing as contemplated in
Section 11.03 and that such terminations shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement. In addition, except as set forth in Schedule 5.01 or otherwise contemplated by the terms of
this Agreement, Sellers and Sellers Affiliate shall, and Sellers Affiliate shall cause Sellers to, do or refrain from doing without the prior written consent of Purchaser (which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), as applicable, the following in connection with the Businesses:

(i) not subject any asset that if held or used by any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate at the time of the Closing would be a Transferred
Asset to any Lien that would have been required to be set forth in Schedule 3.05 if existing on the date of this Agreement;

(i)  not waive any claim or right of material value that relates exclusively to the Businesses;

(iii) not sell, lease, license or otherwise dispose of any asset that if held or used by any Seller or Sellers Affiliate at the time of the
Closing would be a Transferred Asset that is material to the Businesses, except Inventory sold or disposed of in the ordinary course of business;

(iv)  not enter into any material contract, including but not limited to, any material contract for the performance of services;

) not advertise or conduct inventory reduction sales or reduce the price of any item of Sellers Inventory, other than in the ordinary
course of business;

(vi)  use its reasonable commercial efforts to maintain the services of the present employees;

(vil)  preserve the goodwill of the Businesses and that of each Seller’s suppliers, customers and others having business relations with
any Seller;

(viii)  permit Purchaser’s representatives to remain on the business premises during normal business hours and to observe the operation
of the Businesses wherever conducted; provided the presence of Purchaser’s representatives does not unreasonably disrupt the normal operations of any Seller or the Sellers

Affiliate relating to the Businesses, specifically including the free and unfettered interaction between any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate and its outside accountants and auditors;

(ix) not terminate, modify or amend any lease, license, permit, material contract or other material agreement, except in the ordinary
course of business;

(x) not incur any indebtedness, liability or obligation of any nature except current liabilities in the ordinary course of business
consistent with past practice;

(xi)  not do any act or fail to do any act which would cause a material breach of any contract or commitment to which it is a party; or
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(xii)  not agree, whether in writing or otherwise, to do any of the foregoing.

(b)  Each Seller and the Sellers Affiliate shall use, and Sellers Affiliate shall cause the Sellers to use, its reasonable best efforts to keep, or to cause
to be kept, all insurance policies currently maintained with respect to all assets that if held or used by any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate at the time of Closing would be a
Transferred Asset (the “Sellers Insurance Policies”), or suitable replacements therefore, in full force and effect through the close of business on the Closing Date; it being
understood that any and all Sellers Insurance Policies are owned and maintained by one of the Sellers or one of their affiliates (and do not exclusively relate to the Businesses).
Purchaser will not have any rights under the Sellers Insurance Policies from and after the Closing Date.

(c) Neither the Sellers Affiliate, nor any Seller, nor any agent, employee, officer, director, trustee or any representative of any of the foregoing will,
during the period commencing on the date of this Agreement and ending with the earlier to occur of the Closing Date or the termination of this Agreement in accordance with its
terms, directly or indirectly, solicit or initiate the submission of proposals or offers from any person or entity for, participate in any discussions pertaining to, or furnish any
information to any person or entity other than the Purchaser or the Purchaser’s authorized agent, relating to any acquisition or purchase of all or a material amount of the assets
of, or any equity interest in, any Seller or any merger, consolidation or business combination of or involving any Seller.

SECTION 5.02 Access to Information.

Sellers and Sellers Affiliate shall afford, and Sellers Affiliate shall cause the Sellers to afford, to Purchaser and its accountants, counsel and other representatives
reasonable access, upon reasonable prior notice during normal business hours during the period prior to the Closing, to the offices and premises, personnel, books, Transferred
Contracts, commitments and records relating exclusively to the Businesses (other than the Excluded Assets); provided, however, that such access does not unreasonably disrupt the
normal operations of Sellers relating to the Businesses, nor shall Purchaser be permitted to observe or participate in any Seller’s internal meetings and procedures related to
compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Nothing contained in this Section 5.02 shall obligate any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate to breach any duty of
confidentiality owed to any person whether such duty arises contractually, statutorily or otherwise.

SECTION 5.03 Confidentiality/Best Efforts.

(a) Purchaser acknowledges that the information being provided to it in connection with the Acquisition and the consummation of the other
transactions contemplated hereby is subject to the terms of a confidentiality agreement between Lifetime Brands, Inc. and Mikasa Inc. dated July 7, 2007 (the “Confidentiality,
Agreement”), the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference. Effective upon, and only upon, the Closing, the Confidentiality Agreement shall terminate with respect to

information relating solely to the Businesses; provided, however, that Purchaser acknowledges that any and all other information provided to it by any Seller or any Seller’s
representatives concerning any Seller or its affiliates,
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including the Sellers Affiliate, shall remain subject to the terms and conditions of the Confidentiality Agreement after the Closing Date, and Purchaser expressly covenants not to
employ or otherwise exploit any Indivisible Confidential Information, notwithstanding its physical or electronic transfer to Purchaser.

(b)  On the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, each Seller, the Sellers Affiliate and Purchaser shall use, and the Sellers Affiliate
shall cause each Seller to use, its commercial best efforts to cause the Closing to occur, including taking all reasonable actions necessary to comply promptly with all legal
requirements that may be imposed on it or any of its affiliates with respect to the Closing. Neither any Seller, the Sellers Affiliate nor Purchaser shall permit any of their
respective affiliates to, take any actions that would, or that could reasonably be expected to, result in any of the conditions set forth in Article VI not being satisfied.

SECTION 5.04 Brokers or Finders.

Each of each Seller, the Sellers Affiliate, Purchaser and the Purchaser Affiliate represents, as to itself and its affiliates, that no agent, broker, investment banker or
other firm or person is or will be entitled to any broker’s or finder’s fee or any other commission or similar fee in connection with any of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, except, as any Seller and the Sellers Affiliate, Morgan Joseph & Co. Inc., whose fees and expenses will be paid by Sellers or the Sellers Affiliate, and, as to Purchaser
and the Purchaser Affiliate, any fees and expenses of any advisor, broker, or agent Purchaser or the Purchaser Affiliate may employ or otherwise contract with in respect of the
Acquisition, will be paid by Purchaser or the Purchaser Affiliate.

SECTION 5.05 Universal Product Code Transfer Agreement.

At the Closing, Purchaser, Sellers and Sellers Affiliate will enter into a universal product code transfer agreement (substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit
C, the “Universal Product Code Transfer Agreement”).

SECTION 5.06 Transition Services Agreement.

At the Closing, Purchaser, Sellers and Sellers Affiliate shall enter into a transition services agreement (in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D, the “Transition
Services Agreement”).

SECTION 5.07 Distribution Center Services Agreement.

At the Closing, Purchaser, Sellers and Sellers Affiliate shall enter into a distribution center services agreement (substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E,
the “Distribution Center Services Agreement”).

SECTION 5.08 Non-Transferred Asset License.

At the Closing, Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate will execute and deliver the Non-Transferred Asset License.
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SECTION 5.09  Transferred Trademark License.
At the Closing, Sellers will execute and deliver the Transferred Trademark License.
SECTION 5.10 International Agency Agreement.

At the Closing, Purchaser and Sellers Affiliate shall enter into an international agency agreement (substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit F, the
“International Agency Agreement”).

SECTION 5.11 Corporate Giftware Agency Agreement.

At the Closing, Purchaser and Sellers Affiliate shall enter into a corporate giftware agency agreement (substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit G, the
“Corporate Giftware Agency Agreement”).

SECTION 5.12 Non-Contention of Rights to Transferred Intellectual Property.

Following the Closing, neither any Seller nor any affiliate of any Seller (including the Sellers Affiliate) will challenge Purchaser’s right, title and interest in, or
ownership of, any of the Transferred Intellectual Property, except to the extent that Sellers shall have a license to use certain Transferred Intellectual Property as set forth on
Schedule A of the Non-Transferred Asset License. Following the Closing, neither the Purchaser nor any of Purchaser’s affiliates will challenge Sellers or Sellers Affiliate’s right,
title and interest in, or ownership of, (a) any of the intellectual property set forth in Schedule 1.02(b)(xvi), or (b) any of the Transferred Intellectual Property for any periods prior to
the Closing Date

SECTION 5.13 Gift Card.

From the Closing Date through December 31, 2011, Purchaser will not take any action which would be reasonably likely to encourage, promote or encourage the
redemption by customers of gift cards issued by Mikasa prior to the Closing Date

SECTION 5.14 Ralph Lauren.

With respect to the business (the “Ralph Lauren Business™) conducted by American Commercial under or pursuant to its license agreement with Ralph Lauren Home
Collection, Inc. and certain of its affiliates (the “Ralph Lauren License”) the Sellers, the Sellers Affiliate and Purchaser agree as follows:

(a) Following the Closing, the Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate, on the one hand, and Purchaser, on the other hand, shall cooperate with one another in order to
determine a reasonably appropriate arrangement for the orderly continuation of the Ralph Lauren Business through the end of the current term of the Ralph Lauren License on
December 31, 2008 (and any sell off period following December 31, 2008 permitted under the Ralph Lauren License), including, but not limited to, the distribution, sale and
invoicing of all inventory held by the Sellers with respect to the Ralph Lauren Business (the “Ralph Lauren Inventory”).
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(b) On the Closing Date (i) solely for purposes of administration of inventory management, distribution and invoicing of customers with respect to the Ralph Lauren
Business, on the SAP system and distribution center information systems located at the Charleston Distribution Facility (together the “DC Systems™), all Ralph Lauren Inventory
held by the Sellers on the Closing Date and located at the Charleston Distribution Facility shall be reflected as having been transferred to Purchaser for zero cost and (ii) Purchaser
shall, at Sellers cost and expense, provide reasonable assistance to Sellers in permitting shipment and invoicing of the Ralph Lauren Inventory from the Charleston Distribution
Facility, including, but not limited to, permitting invoicing under Purchaser’s name. Notwithstanding the foregoing (i) all right, title and interest in and to the Ralph Lauren
Inventory shall remain with Seller and shall not be transferred or assigned to Purchaser and (ii) the Ralph Lauren Inventory shall not constitute Seller Inventory for purposes of this
Agreement.

(c) In the event it becomes necessary to transfer or remove the Ralph Lauren Inventory from the Charleston Distribution Facility, Purchaser shall cooperate to
have the Ralph Lauren Inventory on the DC Systems transferred to one or more of the Sellers or their designee(s) on the DC Systems at zero cost.

(d) The foregoing treatment of the Ralph Lauren Inventory shall be at no cost to Purchaser under the terms of the Distribution Center Services Agreement or
otherwise. In the event of any conflict between the terms of this Section 5.14 and terms of the Distribution Center Services Agreement, the terms of this Section 5.14 shall govern.

SECTION 5.15 Tyler Florence.

With respect to the business (the “Tyler Florence Business”) conducted by Mikasa under or pursuant to its license agreement with Foodworks Production, Inc. (the
“Tyler Florence License”) the Sellers, the Sellers Affiliate and Purchaser agree as follows:

(a) Following the Closing, the Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate, on the one hand, and Purchaser, on the other hand, shall cooperate with one another in order to
determine a reasonably appropriate arrangement for the orderly continuation of the Tyler Florence Business through September 30, 2008 (and any sell off period following
September 30, 2008 permitted under the Tyler Florence License), including, but not limited to, the distribution, sale and invoicing of all inventory held by the Sellers with respect
to the Tyler Florence Business (the “Tyler Florence Inventory”).

(b) On the Closing Date (i) solely for purposes of administration of inventory management, distribution and invoicing of customers with respect to the Tyler
Florence Business, on the DC Systems, all Tyler Florence Inventory held by the Sellers on the Closing Date and located at the Charleston Distribution Facility shall be reflected as
having been transferred to Purchaser for zero cost and (ii) Purchaser shall, at Sellers cost and expense, provide reasonable assistance to Sellers in permitting shipment and invoicing
of the Tyler Florence Inventory from the Charleston Distribution Facility, including, but not limited to, permitting invoicing under Purchaser’s name. Notwithstanding the foregoing
(i) all right, title and interest in and to the Tyler Florence Inventory shall remain with Seller and shall not be
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transferred or assigned to Purchaser and (ii) the Tyler Florence Inventory shall not constitute Seller Inventory for purposes of this Agreement.

(c) In the event it becomes necessary to transfer or remove the Tyler Florence Inventory from the Charleston Distribution Facility, Purchaser shall cooperate to
have the Tyler Florence Inventory on the DC Systems transferred to one or more of the Sellers or their designee(s) on the DC Systems.

(d) The foregoing treatment of the Tyler Florence Inventory shall be at no cost to Purchaser under the terms of the Distribution Center Services Agreement or
otherwise. In the event of any conflict between the terms of this Section 5.15 and terms of the Distribution Center Services Agreement, the terms of this Section 5.15 shall govern.

ARTICLE VI
Conditions to Closing

SECTION 6.01 Conditions to Each Party’s Obligation.

The obligation of Purchaser to purchase and pay for the Transferred Assets and the obligations of Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate to, and the obligation of the Sellers
Affiliate to cause the Sellers to, sell, transfer, assign and deliver the Transferred Assets to Purchaser is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver by Purchaser, Sellers and the Sellers
Affiliate) on or prior to the Closing Date of the following conditions:

(a)  Governmental Approvals. All material Consents of, or registrations, declarations or filings with, or expirations of waiting periods imposed by,
any Governmental Entity legally required for the consummation of the Acquisition shall have been obtained or filed or shall have occurred.

(b)  No Injunctions or Restraints. No Applicable Law or injunction enacted, entered, promulgated, enforced or issued by any Governmental Entity
or other legal restraint or prohibition preventing the consummation of the Acquisition shall be in effect; provided, however, that each of the parties shall have used its best efforts
(as required by Section 5.04) to prevent the occurrence or entry of any such legal restraint and to remove or appeal as promptly as possible any such legal restraint.

(¢)  No Proceedings. No proceeding shall be pending or threatened before any court or governmental agency in which it is sought to restrain or
prohibit or to obtain damages or other relief in connection with this Agreement or any Ancillary Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or

thereby, and no investigation that might reasonably be expected to result in any such suit, action or proceeding shall be pending or threatened.
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Conditions to Obligation of Purchaser.

The obligation of Purchaser to purchase and pay for the Transferred Assets is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver by Purchaser) on or prior to the Closing Date of the
following conditions:

(d) Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties of Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate in this Agreement shall be, with respect
to those representations and warranties qualified by any materiality standard, true and correct in all respects at and as of the Closing Date, and with respect to all other
representations and warranties, true and correct in all material respects, at and as of the Closing Date, except to the extent any such representations and warranties expressly relate
to an earlier date (in which case such representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects, or in all material respects, as appropriate, on and as of such earlier
date).

(e) Performance of Obligations of Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate. Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate shall have performed or complied in all material
respects with all obligations and covenants required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate by the time of the Closing.

(f)  Good Standings and Resolutions. Each Seller and the Sellers Affiliate shall have furnished the Purchaser with (i) certificates of good-standing
for each Seller and the French equivalent for the Sellers Affiliate and (ii) certified copies of all proceedings of each Seller and of the Sellers Affiliate authorizing the transactions

hereby contemplated as the Purchaser reasonably shall require.

(g)  Lien Discharge. The Sellers shall have obtained a release and discharge of any and all Liens, other than Permitted Liens, which affect the
Businesses or the Transferred Assets.

SECTION 6.02 Conditions to Obligations of Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate.

The obligations of Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate to, or of the Sellers Affiliate to cause the Sellers to, sell, transfer, assign and deliver the Transferred Assets is
subject to the satisfaction (or waiver by Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate) on or prior to the Closing Date of the following conditions:

(a) Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties of Purchaser in this Agreement shall be, with respect to those
representations and warranties qualified by any materiality standard, true and correct in all respects at and as of the Closing Date, and with respect to all other representations and
warranties, true and correct in all material respects, at and as of the Closing Date, except to the extent any such representations and warranties expressly relate to an earlier date
(in which case such representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects, or in all material respects, as appropriate, on and as of such earlier date).

(b) Performance of Obligations of Purchaser and the Purchaser Affiliate. Purchaser and the Purchaser Affiliate shall have performed or complied in
all material respects
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with all obligations and covenants required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by Purchaser and the Purchaser Affiliate by the time of the Closing.

SECTION 6.03 Frustration of Closing Conditions.

Neither Purchaser nor any Seller may rely on the failure of any condition set forth in this Article VI to be satisfied if such failure was caused by such party’s failure to
act in good faith or to use its commercial best efforts to cause the Closing to occur, as required by Section 5.04.

ARTICLE VII.
Termination; Effect of Termination
SECTION 7.01 Termination.

(a)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, this Agreement may be terminated and the Acquisition and the other transactions
contemplated by this Agreement abandoned, at any time prior to the Closing:

@) by mutual written consent of Sellers and Purchaser;

(ii) by Sellers if any of the conditions set forth in Section 6.01 or 6.03 shall have become incapable of fulfillment and shall not have
been waived in writing by duly authorized officers of Sellers;

(iii) by Purchaser if any of the conditions set forth in Section 6.01 or 6.02 shall have become incapable of fulfillment, and shall not
have been waived by Purchaser; or

(iv) by Sellers or Purchaser, if the Closing does not occur on or prior to 5:00 p.m. New York, NY USA time on June 30, 2008;

provided, however, that the party seeking termination pursuant to clause (ii), (iii) or (iv) is not then in material breach of any of its representations, warranties, covenants or
agreements contained in this Agreement.

(b) Inthe event of termination by Sellers or Purchaser pursuant to this Section 7.01, written notice thereof shall forthwith be given to the other party
or parties and the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be terminated, without further action by any party. If the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are
terminated as provided herein:

(i) Purchaser shall, and shall cause each of its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives and advisors to, return to Sellers
all documents and other material received from Sellers or any of their affiliates relating to the transactions contemplated hereby, whether so obtained before or after the execution
hereof; and

(i1) all confidential information received by Purchaser, its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives or advisors with

respect to the businesses of Sellers and their affiliates, including the Sellers Affiliate (including, in each case, with respect to the
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Businesses) shall be treated in accordance with the Confidentiality Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement.

SECTION 7.02 Effect of Termination.

If this Agreement is terminated and the transactions contemplated hereby are abandoned as described in Section 7.01, this Agreement shall become null and void and
of no further force and effect, except for the provisions of (i) Section 5.03 relating to the obligation of Purchaser to keep confidential certain information and data obtained by it
from any Seller or any Seller’s representatives, (ii) Section 12.03 relating to certain expenses, (iii) Section 5.04 relating to finder’s fees and broker’s fees, (iv) Section 7.01 and this
Section 7.02 and (v) Section 11.01 relating to publicity. Nothing in this Section 7.02 shall be deemed to release any party from any liability for any breach by such party of the
terms, conditions, covenants and other provisions of this Agreement or to impair the right of any party to compel specific performance by any other party of its obligations under
this Agreement.

ARTICLE VIIIL.
Indemnification

SECTION 8.01 Indemnification by Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate.

Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 8.06(a), from and after the Closing, Sellers shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Purchaser and each of its affiliates
and each of their respective officers, directors, employees, stockholders, agents and representatives (the “Purchaser Indemnitees”) from and against any and all claims, losses,
damages, liabilities, obligations or expenses, including reasonable third-party legal fees and expenses (collectively, “Losses”), to the extent arising or resulting from any of the
following:

(6] any breach of any representation or warranty of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate contained in this Agreement;
(ii)  any breach of any covenant of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate contained in this Agreement;

(iii))  any and all actions, suits, claims, or legal, administrative, arbitration, governmental or other proceedings or investigations against
any Sellers Indemnitee that relate to the Businesses and which result from or arise out of any event, occurrence, action, inaction or transaction occurring prior to the Closing Date;

(iv)  any non-Assumed or Retained Liability, including, but not limited to, any liability arising out of the employment or discharge by
any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate of any employee; and

) any fees, expenses or other payments incurred or owed by any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate or any of their respective affiliates to
any agent, broker, investment banker or other firm or person retained or employed by it in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
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SECTION 8.02  Indemnification by Purchaser.

Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 8.06(a), from and after the Closing, Purchaser shall indemnity, defend and hold harmless each Seller and each of its
affiliates and each of their respective officers, directors, employees, stockholders, agents and representatives (the “Sellers Indemnitees”) from and against any and all Losses, to the
extent arising or resulting from any of the following:

(i) any breach of any representation or warranty of Purchaser or the Purchaser Affiliate contained in this Agreement;
(ii)  any breach of any covenant of Purchaser or the Purchaser Affiliate contained in this Agreement;

(iii)  any and all actions, suits, claims, or legal, administrative, arbitration, governmental or other proceedings or investigations against
any Purchaser Indemnitee to the extent that such actions, suits, claims or legal, administrative arbitration, governmental or other proceedings or investigations relate to the
Purchaser, the Purchaser’s business or its assets and which result from or arise out of any event, occurrence, action, inaction or transaction;

(iv) any Assumed Liability; and

) any fees, expenses or other payments incurred or owed by Purchaser or its affiliates to any agent, broker, investment banker or
other firm or person retained or employed by it in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

SECTION 8.03 Indemnification Procedures.

Notice must be given within thirty (30) days after discovery of any fact or circumstance on which a party could claim indemnification (“Claim” or “Claims”, and such
Sellers Indemnitee, or Purchaser Indemnitee, as applicable, making such claim, the “Indemnified Party,” and the other party the “Indemnifying Party”). The notice shall describe
the nature of the Claim, if the Claim is determinable, the amount of the Claim, or if not determinable, an estimate of the amount of the Claim. Each party agrees to use its best
efforts as the Indemnified Party to minimize the amount of the Losses for which it is entitled to indemnification. If the Indemnified Party, in order to fulfill its obligations to the
Indemnifying Party must take legal action or if the Indemnified Party is involved in legal action, the outcome of which could give rise to its seeking indemnification, the
Indemnified Party shall consult with the Indemnifying Party with respect to such legal action and allow the Indemnifying Party to participate therein.

No Claim for which indemnification is asserted shall be settled or compromised without the written consent of the Sellers and the Purchaser; provided, however, if an
Indemnified Party does not consent to a bona fide settlement proposed by the Indemnifying Party, the Indemnified Party shall be liable for indemnification only to the lesser of a

final, non-appealable judgment or the amount to be paid in settlement.
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Subject to the provisions of this Section, neither party shall have recourse for indemnification until a Claim is fully and finally resolved. For a period of thirty (30)
days following the giving of the notice of such Claim, the Purchaser and the Sellers shall attempt to resolve any differences they may have with respect to such Claim. If a
resolution is not reached within the thirty (30) day period (unless the parties agree to extend the period), the matter may be submitted to a court of competent jurisdiction.

A Claim shall be deemed finally resolved if settled in writing with appropriate releases, or in the event a matter is submitted to a court, upon the entry of a final, non-
appealable judgment.

SECTION 8.04  Payment of Indemnification Obligation.

Sellers agree to pay promptly to any Sellers Indemnitee, and the Purchaser agrees to pay promptly to any Purchaser Indemnitee, the amount of all Loss to which the
foregoing indemnities relate; provided, that Purchaser shall have the rights set forth in the last sentence of Section 2.02(c)(i).

SECTION 8.05  Other Rights and Remedies Not Affected.

The indemnification rights of the parties under this Article VIII are independent of and in addition to such rights and remedies as the parties may have at law or in
equity or otherwise for any misrepresentation, breach of warranty or failure to fulfill any agreement or covenant hereunder, including without limitation the right to seek specific
performance, rescission or restitution, none of which rights or remedies shall be affected or diminished hereby.

SECTION 8.06 Limitations on Indemnification.

(a) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Article VIII, (i) neither Sellers nor the Sellers Affiliate shall be responsible, pursuant to Section
8.01(i), for any indemnifiable Loss suffered by any Purchaser Indemnitee arising out of a breach of any representation or warranty of any Seller or the Sellers Affiliate herein
unless a claim therefore is asserted in writing within twelve (12) months after the Closing Date, failing which such claim shall be waived and extinguished; provided, however, a
claim arising out of a breach of any representation or warranty of any Seller contained in Section 3.01, 3.02, 3.03 or 3.05 may be made at any time without limitation, (ii) no Seller
nor the Sellers Affiliate shall be responsible pursuant to Section 8.01(ii), for any indemnifiable Loss suffered by any Purchaser Indemnitee arising out of a breach of a covenant of
any Sellers or the Sellers Affiliate herein unless a claim therefore is asserted in writing within twelve (12) months after the date such covenant was to be performed, failing which
such claim shall be waived and extinguished, (iii) no Seller nor the Sellers Affiliate shall be liable, pursuant to Section 8.01(i) or (ii), for any Losses suffered by any Purchaser
Indemnitee unless the aggregate of all Losses suffered by the Purchaser Indemnitees exceeds, on a cumulative basis, an amount equal to US $250,000 (two hundred fifty thousand
US dollars), and then only to the extent of any such excess (provided, however, that the provisions of this clause (iii) shall not apply with respect to a breach of the representation
and warranty contained in Section 3.16(iii)(D) above (provided that claims arising with respect to breaches of Section 3.16(iii)(D) shall only be make in increments of $1,000 or
more) and (iv) the aggregate
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liability of Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate hereunder, pursuant to Section 8.01(i) or (ii), for Losses suffered by the Purchaser Indemnitees shall in no event exceed US $2,500,000
(two million five hundred thousand US dollars).

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Article VIII, (i) Purchaser shall not be responsible, pursuant to Section 8.02(i), for any
indemnifiable Loss suffered by any Sellers Indemnitee arising out of a breach of any representation or warranty of Purchaser herein unless a claim therefore is asserted in writing
within twelve (12) months after the Closing Date, failing which such claim shall be waived and extinguished; provided, however, a claim arising out of a breach of any
representation or warranty of Purchaser contained in Section 4.01, 4.02, or 4.03may be made at any time without limitation, (ii) Purchaser shall not be responsible pursuant to
Section 8.02(ii), for any indemnifiable Loss suffered by any Sellers Indemnitee arising out of a breach of a covenant of Purchaser herein unless a claim therefore is asserted in
writing within twelve (12) months after the date such covenant was to be performed, failing which such claim shall be waived and extinguished, (iii) Purchaser shall not be liable,
pursuant to Section 8.02(i) or (ii), for any Losses suffered by any Sellers Indemnitee unless the aggregate of all Losses suffered by the Sellers Indemnitees exceeds, on a
cumulative basis, an amount equal to US $250,000 (two hundred fifty thousand US dollars), and then only to the extent of any such excess and (iv) the aggregate liability of
Purchaser hereunder, pursuant to Section 8.02(i) or (ii), for Losses suffered by the Sellers Indemnitees shall in no event exceed US $2,500,000 (two million five hundred
thousand US dollars).

SECTION 8.07 Calculation of Indemnity Payments.

The amount of any Loss for which indemnification is provided under this Article VIII shall be net of any amounts recovered or recoverable by the Indemnified Party
under insurance policies with respect to such Loss.

SECTION 8.08 Tax Treatment of Indemnification.

For all Tax purposes, Purchaser, the Purchaser Affiliate, each Seller and the Sellers Affiliate agree to treat (and shall cause each of their respective affiliates to treat)
any indemnity payment under this Agreement as an adjustment to the Final Purchase Price unless a final determination (which shall include the execution of an IRS Form 870-AD
or successor form) provides otherwise.

ARTICLE IX.
Tax Matters
SECTION 9.01 Tax Matters.
(a) Purchase Price Allocations.
(i) Within ten (10) business days following the Closing Date, Purchaser shall provide Sellers with an estimate of the allocation of the

total consideration (including liabilities assumed) among the Transferred Assets, with a single number for all of the
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Transferred Assets of each Seller and of the Sellers Affiliate. This estimate will be used at the Closing. If Sellers do not agree with such estimate, Sellers and Purchaser shall use
good faith efforts to agree on an estimate prior to the Closing Date. If the parties cannot agree on such estimate prior to the Closing Date, Purchaser’s estimate shall be used for
allocating the total consideration pursuant to this Agreement at the Closing.

(ii) Without regard to the estimate determined pursuant to Section 9.01(a)(i), within 60 calendar days of the determination of the Final
Purchase Price, Purchaser shall provide Sellers a proposed allocation (the “Allocation”) of the total consideration (including liabilities assumed) among the Transferred Assets, as
well as with a single amount for all of the Transferred Assets of each Seller and of the Sellers Affiliate. The Allocation shall become final and binding 20 calendar days after
Purchaser provides the Allocation to Sellers, unless Sellers object on the grounds that there is no reasonable basis for the Allocation (in which case, Sellers shall propose an
allocation). If the parties cannot agree on the Allocation, the parties shall jointly appoint an independent accountant to resolve the matter.

(iii)  Each Seller (and their affiliates) and Purchaser (and its affiliates) agree to file all Tax Returns consistent with the final version of
the Allocation and forms described in this Section 9.01.

(b)  Sellers and Purchaser shall cooperate in timely making all filings, returns, reports and forms as may be required in connection with Purchaser’s
payment of Transfer Taxes. Sellers (and their affiliates) shall execute and deliver all instruments and certificates necessary to enable the Purchaser to comply with any filing
requirements relating to any such Transfer Taxes. Purchaser shall pay all Transfer Taxes; provided, however, that each Seller and the Sellers Affiliate shall use reasonable efforts
to avail itself of all available exemptions from any such Transfer Taxes, and to cooperate with the Purchaser in providing any information and documentation that may be
necessary to obtain such exemption.

(c) Real and Personal Property Taxes which are imposed on a periodic basis shall be allocated to Sellers in proportion to the ratio of the number of
days in such period through the Closing Date and to Purchaser in proportion to the ratio of days in such period after the Closing Date.

(d) Purchaser agrees to retain all records relating to the finances and Taxes of the Transferred Assets for all Pre-Closing Tax Periods until the
expiration of the statutes of limitation (including any extensions thereof) for the taxable period or periods to which such records relate. Purchaser, the Purchaser Affiliate, Sellers,
and the Sellers Affiliate agree to provide each other with such information and assistance as is reasonably necessary, including access to records and personnel, for the
preparation of any Tax Return or for the defense of any Tax claim or assessment, whether in connection with an audit or otherwise.

(e)  Sellers shall furnish to Purchaser on or prior to the Closing Date a certificate of its non-foreign status complying with the provisions of United
States Treasury Regulation Section 1.1445-2(b).
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ARTICLE X.

[RESERVED]

ARTICLE XI.
Additional Agreements

SECTION 11.01 Publicity.

From the date hereof through the Closing Date, no public release or announcement (including any broadly disseminated announcement or declaration to the
employees of Sellers, the Sellers Affiliate, the Purchaser or the Purchaser Affiliate) concerning the transactions contemplated hereby shall be issued by any party without the prior
consent of the other parties (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), except as such release or announcement may be required by law or the rules or
regulations of any United States or foreign securities exchange, in which case the party required to make the release or announcement shall allow the other parties reasonable time
to comment on such release or announcement in advance of such issuance; provided, however, that each of the parties may make internal announcements to their respective
employees that are consistent with the parties’ prior public disclosures regarding the transactions contemplated hereby. For the avoidance of doubt, and in furtherance of, and not in
substitution of, the confidentiality agreement entered into among the Sellers, Sellers Affiliate and the Purchaser Affiliate, the parties agree that both the existence and the terms of
this Agreement shall remain private and confidential at all times, and that the same shall be subject to the same disclosure restrictions and terms set forth above.

SECTION 11.02 No Use of Certain Names.

Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate shall, and shall cause their affiliates, promptly, and in any event (a) within thirty (30) days after the Closing, to revise print
advertising, product labeling and all other information or other materials, including any internet or other electronic communications vehicles, to delete all references to the Names
and (b) within thirty (30) days after the Closing, to change signage and stationery and otherwise discontinue use of the Names; provided, however, that for a period of thirty (30)
days after the Closing Date Sellers may continue to distribute product literature relating to the Businesses that uses any Name and distribute products with labeling that uses any
Name to the extent that such product literature and labeling exists on the Closing Date. In no event shall Sellers or the Sellers Affiliate use any Name after the Closing in any
manner or for any purpose different from the use of such Name by Sellers and the Sellers Affiliate during the 90-day period preceding the Closing. Within seven (7) days after the
Closing, Sellers shall file applications to amend or terminate any certificate of assumed name or d/b/a filings so as to eliminate their rights to use the Name. “Name” means
“Mikasa” and all variations and derivatives thereof and all other logos or trademarks of Sellers or any of its affiliates included in Schedule 1.02(a)(ii)(A) or (iii). Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the Sellers or the Sellers Affiliate may use such names pursuant to the terms of any agreement with the Purchaser or its affiliates permitting such use, specifically
including the agreements to be entered into as part of the transactions provided for in this Agreement.
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SECTION 11.03  Support Services.

Purchaser acknowledges that as of the Closing Date, neither Sellers nor any of its affiliates, including the Sellers Affiliate, shall have any obligation to provide any
support or other services to Purchaser relating to the Businesses other than those services expressly required to be provided pursuant to this Agreement and the Ancillary
Agreements to which Sellers and/or its affiliates, including the Sellers Affiliate, are parties.

SECTION 11.04  Post-Closing Information.

Following the Closing, upon reasonable written notice to Purchaser, Purchaser shall afford or cause to be afforded to Sellers and its affiliates reasonable access to the
personnel, properties, books, Contracts, commitments and records relating to the Businesses for any reasonable business purpose, including in respect of litigation, insurance
matters and financial reporting of the Sellers and its affiliates.

SECTION 11.05  Records.

Purchaser recognizes that certain records may contain information relating to subsidiaries, divisions or businesses of Sellers and its affiliates, including the Sellers
Affiliate, other than the Businesses and that Sellers and its affiliates, including the Sellers Affiliate, may retain copies thereof.

SECTION 11.06  Bulk Transfer Laws.

In lieu of complying with the provisions of Article 6 (Bulk Transfers) of the Uniform Commercial Code, Sellers covenants and agrees to hold harmless and indemnify
Purchaser from and against any and all Losses arising out of the failure or alleged failure to comply with Article 6.

SECTION 11.07 Refunds and Remittances.

After the Closing, if Sellers or any of its affiliates, including the Sellers Affiliate, receive any refund or other amount which is a Transferred Asset or is otherwise
properly due and owing to Purchaser in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, Sellers promptly shall remit, or shall cause to be remitted, such amount to Purchaser at the
address set forth in Section 12.04. After the Closing, if Purchaser or any of its affiliates receive any refund or other amount which is an Excluded Asset or is otherwise properly due
and owing to Sellers or any of its affiliates, including the Sellers Affiliate, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, Purchaser promptly shall remit, or shall cause to be
remitted, such amount to Sellers at the address set forth in Section 12.04. After the Closing, if Purchaser or any of its affiliates receive any refund or other amount which is related
to claims, litigation, insurance or other matters for which Sellers is responsible hereunder, and which amount is not a Transferred Asset, or is otherwise properly due and owing to
Sellers or any of its affiliates, including the Sellers Affiliate, in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, Purchaser promptly shall remit, or cause to be remitted, such amount
to Sellers at the address set forth in Section 12.04. After the Closing, if Sellers or any of its affiliates, including the Sellers Affiliate, receive any refund or other amount which is
related to claims, litigation, insurance or other matters for which Purchaser is responsible hereunder, and
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which amount is not an Excluded Asset, or is otherwise properly due and owing to Purchaser in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, Sellers promptly shall remit, or cause
to be remitted, such amount to Purchaser at the address set forth in Section 12.04.

ARTICLE XII.

Miscellaneous
SECTION 12.01 Assignment.

Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder may be assigned by any of the parties hereto without the prior written consent of
the other parties hereto, except that (a) Purchaser may assign its rights hereunder to any of its wholly owned subsidiaries without the prior written consent of Sellers, (b) Sellers
may assign any rights and obligations hereunder to any of the affiliates of ARC without the prior written consent of Purchaser (in the case of obligations, solely if such ARC
affiliate is capable of fulfilling the same), and (c) an assignment by operation of law in connection with a merger or consolidation shall not require the consent of the other parties
hereto. Notwithstanding the foregoing, each of Sellers, the Sellers Affiliate, and Purchaser shall remain liable for all of their respective obligations under this Agreement. Subject to
the first sentence of this Section 12.01, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns and no other
person shall have any right, obligation or benefit hereunder. Any attempted assignment or transfer in violation of this Section 12.01 shall be void.

SECTION 12.02 No Third-Party Beneficiaries.

Except as provided in Article VIII, this Agreement is for the sole benefit of the parties hereto and their permitted assigns and nothing herein expressed or implied
shall give or be construed to give to any person, other than the parties hereto and such assigns, any legal or equitable right hereunder.

SECTION 12.03  Expenses.
Whether or not the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are consummated, except as otherwise expressly provided herein each of the parties hereto shall be
responsible for the payment of its own respective costs and expenses incurred in connection with the negotiations leading up to and the performance of its respective obligations
pursuant to this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements including the fees of any attorneys, accountants, brokers or advisors employed or retained by or on behalf of such party.

Purchaser and Sellers shall equally divide the payment of any filing fee required by the transactions contemplated hereunder.

SECTION 12.04  Notices.

All notices, requests, permissions, waivers and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given one business day
following confirmed delivery by private overnight courier with recorded delivery (FedEx, UPS or DHL) addressed to a party at the following address for such party:
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If to Sellers or the Sellers Affiliate,:

Arc International

41, Avenue du General de Gaulle
F-62510 ARQUES

France

Attn: Jean-Paul Rispail

With a copy to:

DLA Piper US LLP

1251 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10020-1104
Attn: Jonathan Klein, Esq.
Fax No. (212) 335-4501

If to Purchaser:

Lifetime Brands, Inc.

1000 Stewart Avenue

Garden City, New York 11530
Attn: Ronald Shiftan

Fax No.: 516-683-6006

With a copy to:

Lifetime Brands, Inc.

1000 Stewart Avenue

Garden City, New York 11530

Attn: Lifetime Brands Legal Department
Fax No.: 516-450-0009

or to such other address(es) as shall be furnished in writing by any such party to the other parties hereto in accordance with the provisions of this Section 12.04.

SECTION 12.05 Headings; Certain Definitions.

(a) The descriptive headings of the several Articles and Sections of this Agreement and the Disclosure Schedule to this Agreement and the Table of
Contents to this Agreement are inserted for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Agreement and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this
Agreement. All references herein to “Articles”, “Sections”, “Exhibits” or “Schedules” shall be deemed to be references to Articles or Sections hereof or Exhibits or Schedules
hereto unless otherwise indicated.
(b)  For all purposes hereof:

“$” means United States dollars.
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“affiliate” of any party means any person or entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with such party and, in the case of Sellers, shall
include ARC International, SA, JG Durand Industries SA or any entity a majority of the voting shares of which is owned directly or indirectly by ARC International, SA, JG
Durand Industries SA or both of them together (including the Sellers Affiliate).

“Brands” means brands employing the “Mikasa” name, excluding products sold under or employing the marks of the Licensed Businesses, as defined in
Section 1.02(b)(xvii), Sellers’ “Oenology” brand, Sellers’ and Sellers Affiliate’s hotel and restaurant channel product lines.

“business day” refers to a day, other than a Saturday or a Sunday, on which commercial banks are not required or authorized to close in New York City.

“Business” refers to marketing, sales and related endeavors and support with respect to the Products employing Sellers’ Brands in North America in
each the following business segments: (i) wholesale, and (ii) internet. “Businesses” shall refer, collectively, to the foregoing Businesses across all Brands.

“Businesses Material Adverse Effect” means a material adverse effect (i) on the financial condition, assets, results of operations or prospects of the
Businesses, taken as a whole, or (ii) on the ability of Sellers to consummate the Acquisition. For purposes of this Agreement, “Businesses Material Adverse Effect” shall exclude
any effects to the extent resulting from (A) changes in the United States or foreign economies in general, including any changes in currency exchange rates, (B) changes in
industries relating to the Businesses in general and not specifically relating to the Businesses, (C) the announcement by Sellers of its intention to sell the Businesses, or (D) the
execution of this Agreement or any of the Ancillary Agreements and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, or (E) the disclosure of the identity of
the Purchaser.

“Charleston Distribution Facility” means the distribution facility operated by Sellers in Charleston, North Carolina.

“Contracts” means all written contracts, leases, subleases, licenses, indentures, agreements, commitments and all other legally binding instruments.

“day” shall refer to a calendar day, unless when used in the phrase “business day.”

“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States as in effect from time to time, applied on a consistent basis, and consistent
with past practices of Sellers.

“Governmental Entity” means any government or governmental or regulatory body thereof, or political subdivision thereof, whether foreign, federal,
state, or local, or any agency, board, commission, department, instrumentality or authority thereof, including any court.
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“Gross Inventory Amount” means the aggregate gross book value of all Sellers Inventory on the books of Sellers on the Closing Date.
“including” means including, without limitation.

“Indivisible Confidential Information” means any information contained in the books, records and other modes of documentation that may be
transferred physically or electronically to the Purchaser that, on its face, does not relate to the Transferred Assets, but rather to the non-transferred business affairs of the Sellers
Affiliate, and which information would be deemed by a reasonable person without investigation to constitute proprietary and confidential information of the Sellers Affiliate,
possession of which has been transferred unintentionally to Purchaser due to the impracticality of segregating or redacting such material.

“knowledge of Purchaser” means the actual or constructive knowledge of the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Operating Officer of the Purchaser.
For purposes of this definition, “constructive knowledge” shall mean knowledge that a reasonable prudent executive should have reason to know given such person’s tenure with
the Purchaser, as applicable, and the legal and fiduciary responsibilities of their particular position.

“knowledge of Sellers” means the actual or constructive knowledge of the Chief Executive, Board Members, Directors and Officers of each Seller and
their respective affiliates (other than the Sellers Affiliate) and Jean Paul Rispail and Eric Thomas of the Sellers Affiliate. For purposes of this definition, “constructive knowledge”
shall mean knowledge that a reasonable prudent executive should have reason to know given such person’s tenure with the Sellers or Sellers Affiliate, as applicable, and the legal
and fiduciary responsibilities of their particular position.

“Madison Avenue Office Space” means the office space occupied by Sellers at 51 Madison Avenue, 24th Floor, New York, New York as more fully
identified in that certain lease by and between Mikasa, Inc., and New York Life Insurance Company, dated August 9, 2005, with a 16 year term, as amended from time to time.

“Madison Avenue Showroom Lease” means the lease between Mikasa Inc. and New York Life Insurance Company, dated as of August 9, 2005, as
amended by that certain first amendment to lease dated as of September 15, 2005, for certain store premises located on the ground floor and mezzanine floor of the building located
at 51 Madison Avenue, New York, New York.

“person” means any individual, firm, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust, joint venture, Governmental Entity or other entity.
“Post-Closing Business” means the Businesses conducted by the Purchaser employing the Transferred Trademarks after the Closing Date.

“Post-Closing Tax Period” shall mean any taxable period beginning after the Closing Date and the portion after the Closing Date of any taxable period
that does not end on or before the Closing Date.
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“Pre-Closing Tax Period” shall mean all taxable periods ending on or before the Closing Date and the portion ending on the Closing Date of any taxable
period that includes but does not end on the Closing Date.

“Products” means, with respect to each Brand, dinnerware, giftware, stemware, barware, flatware and other products designed for decorative or
utilitarian purposes by Sellers and sold by Sellers.

“Secaucus Office Space” means the office space occupied by Sellers in Secaucus, New Jersey as more fully identified in that certain lease by and
between American Commercial, Inc., an affiliate of Sellers and Harmon Meadow Plaza, Inc., dated September 29, 2005 with a ten year term, as amended from time to time.

“subsidiary” of any person means another person, an amount of the voting securities, other voting ownership or voting partnership interests of which is

sufficient to elect at least a majority of its Board of Directors or other governing body (or, if there are no such voting interests, 50% or more of the equity interests of which) is
owned directly or indirectly by such first person or by another subsidiary of such first person.

“Tax” or “Taxes” shall mean all forms of taxation imposed by any Federal, state, provincial, local, foreign or other Taxing Authority, including income,
franchise, property, sales, use, excise, employment, unemployment, payroll, social security, estimated, value added, ad valorem, transfer, recapture, withholding, health and other
taxes of any kind, including any interest, penalties and additions thereto.

“Taxing Authority” shall mean any Federal, state, provincial, local or foreign government, any subdivision, agency, commission or authority thereof or
any quasi-governmental body exercising tax regulatory authority.

“Tax Return” shall mean any report, return, document, declaration or other information or filing required to be supplied to any Taxing Authority with
respect to Taxes, including any amendment made with respect thereto.

“Transfer Taxes” shall mean all sales (including bulk sales), use, transfer, recording, ad valorem, privilege, documentary, gross receipts, registration,
conveyance, excise, license, stamp or similar Taxes and fees arising out of, in connection with or attributable to the transactions effectuated pursuant to this Agreement.

SECTION 12.06 Counterparts.

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement, and shall become effective when one or
more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties hereto and delivered, in person receipt acknowledged, to the other party hereto.

SECTION 12.07 Integrated Contract; Exhibits and Schedules/Survival.
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This Agreement, including the Schedules (and the Introduction thereto) and Exhibits hereto, any written amendments to the foregoing satisfying the requirements of
Section 12.13 hereof, the Confidentiality Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements, including the schedules and exhibits thereto, constitute the entire agreement among the parties
with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof and supersede any previous agreements and understandings between the parties with respect to such matters. All Exhibits and
Schedules annexed hereto or referred to herein are hereby incorporated in and made a part of this Agreement as if set forth in full herein. Any capitalized terms used in any
Schedule or Exhibit but not otherwise defined therein shall be defined as set forth in this Agreement. There are no restrictions, promises, representations, warranties, agreements or
undertakings of any party hereto with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, the Confidentiality Agreement or the Ancillary Agreements other than those set
forth herein or therein or in any other document required to be executed and delivered hereunder or thereunder. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this
Agreement (including the Schedules (and the Introduction thereto) and Exhibits hereto), on the one hand, and the provisions of the Confidentiality Agreement or the Ancillary
Agreements (including the schedules and exhibits thereto), on the other hand, the provisions of this Agreement shall control. The rights and obligations of the Parties as specified in
this Agreement shall survive the Closing of the transactions contemplated hereby.

SECTION 12.08 Severability; Enforcement.

The invalidity of any portion hereof shall not affect the validity, force or effect of the remaining portions hereof. If it is ever held that any restriction hereunder is too
broad to permit enforcement of such restriction to its fullest extent, each party agrees that a court of competent jurisdiction may enforce such restriction to the maximum extent
permitted by law, and each party hereby consents and agrees that such scope may be judicially modified accordingly in any proceeding brought to enforce such restriction.

SECTION 12.09 Governing Law.

This Agreement and any disputes arising under or related thereto (whether for breach of contract, tortious conduct or otherwise) shall be governed and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of New York, without reference to its conflicts of law principles.

SECTION 12.10 Jurisdiction.

Each Party irrevocably agrees that any legal or equitable action, suit or proceeding against them arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the
transactions contemplated hereby or disputes relating hereto (whether for breach of contract, tortuous conduct, or otherwise) shall be brought exclusively in either the state or
federal courts located in the County and State of New York and hereby irrevocably accepts and submits to the exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the aforesaid courts in personam,
with respect to any such action, suit or proceeding.

SECTION 12.11 Service of Process.

Each of the Parties agrees that service of any process, summons, notice or document by the means or in the manner described in Section 12.04 above to such party’s
respective address
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set forth therein shall be effective service of process for any action, suit or proceeding in any jurisdiction with respect to any matters for which it has submitted to jurisdiction
pursuant to Section 12.10.

SECTION 12.12 Waiver of Jury Trial.

EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT
TO ANY LITIGATION DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF, UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS
CONTEMPLATED HEREBY OR DISPUTES RELATING HERETO. EACH PARTY (A) CERTIFIES THAT NO REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT OR ATTORNEY OF ANY
OTHER PARTY HAS REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, THAT SUCH OTHER PARTY WOULD NOT, IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, SEEK TO
ENFORCE THE FOREGOING WAIVER AND (B) ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT AND THE OTHER PARTIES HERETO HAVE BEEN INDUCED TO ENTER INTO THIS
AGREEMENT BY, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MUTUAL WAIVERS AND CERTIFICATIONS IN THIS SECTION 12.12.

SECTION 12.13 Amendments.

This Agreement may be amended, modified, superseded or canceled and any of the terms, covenants, representations, warranties or conditions hereof may be waived
only by an instrument in writing signed by each of the parties hereto or, in the case of a waiver, by or on behalf of the party waiving compliance.

SECTION 12.14 Guarantees.

(a)  Until such time as the Sellers Affiliate shall deliver to Purchaser a duly executed Guaranty (as herein after defined) (i) the Sellers’ and the
Sellers Affiliate’s obligations under this Agreement and each of the Ancillary Agreements (including, but not limited to, the Sellers’ and the Sellers Affiliate’s obligations under
Article VIII hereof) shall be secured by the Deferred Purchase Price and (ii) Purchaser may offset against the payment of any of the Deferred Purchase Price otherwise due and
payable by Purchaser to the Sellers Affiliate or its designee(s) hereunder any and all amounts due and payable by any one or more of the Sellers or the Sellers Affiliate to
Purchaser hereunder. For avoidance of doubt, Purchaser’s rights under the immediately preceding sentence shall terminate upon the delivery by the Sellers Affiliate to Purchaser
of a duly executed Guaranty.

As used herein, the “Guaranty” shall mean a written instrument executed by the Sellers Affiliate for the benefit of Purchaser in which the Sellers Affiliate agrees as
follows:

Arc International, SA (the “Sellers Affiliate”) unconditionally guarantees to TMC Acquisition Inc. (“Purchaser”) and its affiliates the full and timely
performance of all of the obligations and agreements of each of Mikasa Inc., American Commercial Incorporated and Mikasa Licensing Inc. (together,
the “Sellers”) contained in each of the Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”), dated June _ , 2008, among the Sellers, the Sellers Affiliate,
Purchaser and Lifetime Brands Inc. and the Ancillary Agreements (as defined in the Agreement). The
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foregoing guarantee shall include the guarantee of the payment of all damages, costs and expenses which become recoverable as a result of the
nonperformance of any of the obligations or agreements so guaranteed or as a result of the nonperformance of this guarantee, in each case, as fully and
finally determined by a court or arbitral process in accordance with the dispute resolution provisions of this Agreement. Any guaranteed person may, at
its option, proceed against Sellers Affiliate for the performance of any such obligation or agreement, or for damages for default in the performance
thereof, without first proceeding against any other party or against any of its properties. Sellers Affiliate further agrees that its guarantee shall be an
irrevocable guarantee and shall continue in effect notwithstanding any extension or modification of any guaranteed obligation, any assumption of any
such guaranteed obligation by any other party, or any other act or thing which might otherwise operate as a legal or equitable discharge of a guarantor
and the Sellers Affiliate waives all special suretyship defenses and notice requirements.

(b) Purchaser Affiliate unconditionally guarantees to Seller and its affiliates the full and timely performance of all of the obligations and agreements
of Purchaser contained in each of this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements. The foregoing guarantee shall include the guarantee of the payment of all damages, costs and
expenses which become recoverable as a result of the nonperformance of any of the obligations or agreements so guaranteed or as a result of the nonperformance of this
guarantee, in each case, as fully and finally determined by a court or arbitral process in accordance with the dispute resolution provisions of this Agreement. Any guaranteed
person may, at its option, proceed against Purchaser Affiliate for the performance of any such obligation or agreement, or for damages for default in the performance thereof,
without first proceeding against any other party or against any of its properties. Purchaser Affiliate further agrees that its guarantee shall be an irrevocable guarantee and shall
continue in effect notwithstanding any extension or modification of any guaranteed obligation, any assumption of any such guaranteed obligation by any other party, or any other
act or thing which might otherwise operate as a legal or equitable discharge of a guarantor and the Purchaser Affiliate waives all special suretyship defenses and notice
requirements.

Signatures appear on following page
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Sellers, the Sellers Affiliate, Purchaser and Purchaser Affiliate have duly executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.

MIKASA, INC.

by /s/ John R. Ranelli
Name: John R. Ranelli
Title: CEO

AMERICAN COMMERCIAL INCORPORATED

by /s/ John R. Ranelli
Name: John R. Ranelli
Title: CEO

MIKASA LICENSING INC.

by /s/ John R. Ranelli
Name: John R. Ranelli
Title: CEO

ARC INTERNATIONAL, SA

by /s/Patrick Gournay

Name: Patrick Gournay
Title: President du Directoire

TMC ACQUISITION INC.

by /s/Ronald Shiftan

Name: Ronald Shiftan
Title: Vice Chairman

LIFETIME BRANDS, INC.

by /s/Ronald Shiftan

Name: Ronald Shiftan
Title: Vice Chairman
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